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TRUST VALUES AND BEHAVIOURS 
 
The Trust’s vision is to provide an outstanding experience for every patient. This is 
delivered through three strategic priorities of Local Services, Specialist Services and 
Innovation. There are three enabling objectives of Care, People and Resources. The 
effective operation of our organisation is underpinned by a number of values and 
behaviours, which were developed with our staff. They describe the characteristics we 
want Salisbury Foundation Trust to be known for and represent the foundations on which 
we seek to deliver our vision and strategic priorities. There are four core values each of 
which describes behaviours that demonstrate those values and are what our staff, our 
patients and the Trust as a whole, would expect to see in practice: 
 
Patient Centred and Safe – Our focus here is on patient safety, team work and 
continuous improvement. 
 
Professional – Our focus is on being open and honest, efficient and acting as a good role 
model. 
 
Responsive - Our expectation is that staff will be action orientated, with a ‘can do’ attitude 
and that they innovate, take personal responsibility and listen and learn. 
 
Friendly - We expect our staff to be welcoming, treat people with respect and dignity and 
value others as individuals. 
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However, the demands of modern healthcare can leave staff at risk of compassion fatigue 
or feeling rushed. Our nurses in Salisbury can use handmade, cream, paper ‘Compassion 
Roses’, made by staff who give up their time between shifts and other volunteers. This is 
one of countless examples of how our corporate values are made real by the hospital’s 
incredible and diverse workforce. 
  
Indeed, the Board of Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust takes serious our responsibilities to 
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Purpose and Activities of the Trust 
 
Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust delivers a broad range of clinical care to approximately 
225,000 people in Wiltshire, Dorset and Hampshire. Specialist services, such as burns, 
plastic surgery, cleft lip and palate, genetics and rehabilitation, extend to a much wider 
population of more than three million people.  
 
The Duke of Cornwall Spinal Treatment Centre at Salisbury District Hospital covers 
southern England, with a population of approximately 11 million people. In the financial 
year 2018-2019, the Trust treated 70,641 inpatients and 219,264 outpatients. The hospital 
employed 4,623 staff (as of end of February 2019), this includes 3,689 permanent 
employees and 934 people working for the Nursing and Administration bank; 1,867 
members of the Trust’s permanent staff worked full-time, while the remaining 2,807 
worked part-time.  
 
The Trust’s services are organised into clinical and non-clinical directorates. Non-clinical 
directorates are led by Executive members of the Trust Board. Clinical directorates are led 
by directorate management teams, with a clinical director, all of whom are currently 
practicing doctors, supported by a directorate manager and directorate senior nurse or 
allied health professional. This means that the hospital’s clinically trained staff have direct 
responsibility for budgets and patient services, within their directorate. The clinical 
directorates have a clear line to the board reporting to the Chief Operating Officer who in 
turn reports to the Chief Executive. 
 
The Trust Board, chaired by Nick Marsden, is the statutory authority which sets the overall 
strategy for the Trust. The Trust’s Board comprises five Executive Directors and six Non-
Executive Directors.  
 
As an NHS Foundation Trust, the Trust has a Council of Governors. The Trust Board is 
accountable to the Council of Governors. In addition, Governors have a wider role which 
includes ensuring that the local community and staff have a say in how services are 
developed and delivered by the Trust. 
 
The Trust has two subsidiary companies, Odstock Medical Ltd and Salisbury Trading 
Limited. Odstock Medical Ltd (OML) was set up in 2005 to market worldwide its 
experience and knowledge of functional electrical stimulation and its own pioneering 
electrical devices for patients who have had a stroke or other neurological disorders. 
Income generated is used for research and for new initiatives.   
 
Salisbury Trading Limited provides a laundry service to Salisbury District Hospital and 
other NHS organisations. The Trust also works with other organisations in joint ventures. 
For instance, it works with the Great Western Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust and the 
Royal United Hospitals Bath NHS Foundation Trust to provide adult community services 
across Wiltshire through Wiltshire Health and Care. It also works with Sterile Supplies Ltd 
to provide sterilisation and disinfection services to Salisbury District Hospital and other 
NHS organisations.  
 
The Trust provides services for patients through contractual arrangements with Clinical 
Commissioning Groups and specialised commissioners. Patient care and treatment is 
based on a national tariff (PbR), which determines the amount the Trust is paid for the 
work that it carries out.   
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increase in the number of non-elective medicine patients seen, treated and discharged in 
less than 24 hours (April 2019 compared to April 2017). The Trust is continuing the 
SAFER improvements which look to ensure that there is never a day when something is 
not happening for a patient, for example, treatment, diagnostic or active monitoring. This 
work will be built on in 2019/20 with a program of improvements to enhance the 
experience for patients in the hospital and improved discharge from the hospital. 
 
HIGHLIGHT OF THE YEAR – we are extremely proud that the Trust has improved its 

performance in seeing emergency patients attending our Emergency Department 
quicker and decreasing the waiting time for patients waiting for elective surgery  

 

Specialist Services 
The Trust has continued to maintain its well established reputation for good quality 
specialist services. The specialist services are an essential element in the range of 
services provided in Salisbury and the Trust has remained committed to building on these 
as part of its long term vision. The level of expertise remains nationally recognised with 
outstanding microsurgical techniques, management of patients with burns, cancer care, 
reconstructive surgery, services for patients with a spinal cord injury and a nationally 
acclaimed genetics laboratory service.  
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Over a number of years, scientists in the specialist Wessex Regional Genetics Laboratory 
at Salisbury District Hospital have received national and international recognition for high 
quality research. In 2018, the Director of the Service was awarded the International CML 
Foundation (iCMLf) Rowley Prize in recognition of his outstanding contribution to scientific 
discovery, research and development of genetic testing to enable personalised medicine 
for leukaemia patients. During the year specialist expertise and skills within the team 
enabled it to translate research findings into expanded testing services to improve patient 
outcomes.  

In 2018, NHS England commissioned seven new genomic laboratory hubs to provide 
equity of access to genomic testing across the country. The Trust, Birmingham Women’s 
and Children’s, University Hospital Birmingham, Oxford University Hospital, and University 
Hospital Southampton Trusts have joined forces as the largest genomic testing service in 
the country. A range of core and specialised tests will be delivered in Salisbury including 
for rare lung diseases such as, primary ciliary dyskinesia (PCD) in which early diagnosis 
and treatment can help prevent lung damage. Genomic testing will continue to advance 
and will play an important role in improving outcomes for patients with rare diseases and 
cancer. 

 

Innovation 
We will promote new and better ways of working, always looking to achieve 
excellence and sustainability in how our services are delivered. 

The Trust set out to deliver an increased range of high quality research which directly 
benefits patient care and optimises the level of research income earned.  
The Trust is one of the top performing research active small acute Trusts in the country. 
Based on the latest available figures, 1581 people took part in 91 National Institute for 
Health Research (NIHR) and Clinical Research Network studies across 23 specialities in 
the Trust in 2018/19.  
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discharged. Nine patients did not notice any significant improvement and of these, six 
have had or are booked for further surgery. 
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People 
We will make S alisbury Foundation Trust  an outstanding place to work where 
everyone feels valued, supported and engaged and are able to develop as 
individuals and as teams  

 
In order to remain a successful organisation the Trust must continue to attract, retain, and 
deploy the right 
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In terms of mandatory training and appraisals, whilst compliance does fluctuate from 
month to month, the Trust again saw improvement in both areas over the previous year. 
This area will constantly be a challenge, however, and work continues to focus on 
management capacity and capability to achieve both the coverage and quality of 
appraisals for staff that they manage. Whilst our sickness absence rate is one of the 
lowest in the region, at 3.38%, we value our staff and want to ensure that they have the 
support that they need.  
 
During 2018/19 we reviewed our Attendance Management policy, to ensure that it 
continues to meet the needs of our staff and managers. We also continued to provide 
additional support to departments with high sickness absence rates, as well as rolling out a 
toolkit for managers to use to help them manage sickness within their areas. We are 
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In the current climate, it is important that the Trust builds on its reputation for innovation 
and uses every opportunity to bring in new technology that adds value to the organisation. 
The Trust has refreshed its digital strategy which will be published early in 2019/20. This is 
the roadmap to ensuring services can be delivered more efficiently and reflect how 
technology can really improve patients experience. 
 
It is also important that the Trust looks to generate more income from its own commercial 
activities. Activities that generate income for Salisbury can also have a benefit for the 
wider health service, increasing expertise and keeping money within the NHS. Income 
generated by Odstock Medical Ltd (OML), is used to further research and create new 
technology that helps patients walk after a stroke or those with multiple sclerosis. The 
Trust has another subsidiary company Salisbury Trading Limited, which provides a laundry 
service to Salisbury District Hospital and other NHS organisations. The Trust also provides 
payroll services to a growing number of other Trusts, Clinical Commissioning Groups and 
other organisations. Customers appreciate the responsiveness and competitive pricing 
and the Trust benefits from savings. 
 
There are a number of factors that are crucial to the Trust’s performance and key financial 
assurances include control over income levels from the provision of services and 
treatment, the achievement of budgetary targets and cost savings, and the achievement of 
contractual targets. The Trust also has a risk rating from the regulator covering liquidity 
and the ability to service debt. At the end of the financial year the Trust had an overall 
Financial Sustainability Risk Rating of 3. While cash flow has come under significant 
pressure 
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Trust’s Audit Committee. All anti-fraud and corruption legislation is complied with, and a 
recent development, the Bribery Act 2010, has added to the Trust’s duties in this respect.  
It is a criminal offence to give, promise or offer a bribe, and to request, agree to receive, or 
accept a bribe. A bribe may take the form of any financial or other advantage to another 
person in order to induce a person to perform improperly. The Trust’s Fraud, Bribery and 
Corruption Policy is a guide for all employees on counter fraud work within the Trust. It 
advises staff on how to report suspicions of fraud, bribery or corruption. 
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ACCOUNTABILITY REPORT 
 
DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
 
The Directors present their annual report, together with the audited financial statements for 
Salisbury Hospital NHS Foundation Trust (the Trust), for the period 1 April 2018 to 31 
March 2019.  
 
Board of Directors 
 
Directors of Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust during 2018/2019 
Dr Nick Marsden Chairman  
Cara Charles-Barks Chief Executive  
Dr Christine Blanshard

Ce Dautarks
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consideration of the views of Non-Executive and Executive Directors and key external 
stakeholders. 
 
The Remuneration Committee receives annual assurance that the performance evaluation 
process for the Executive Directors has been completed appropriately. 
 
Annual objectives are set for all Executive Directors, taking into account strategic and 
corporate objectives. Annual performance appraisal takes account of the extent to which 
each of these objectives has been met. Performance appraisals are used as the basis for 
determining individual and collective professional development programmes for all 
Directors relevant to their duties as Board members. 
 
Details of how the effectiveness of the Board’s governance processes is assessed can be 
found within the Annual Governance Statement.  
 
NHS Improvement’s Well Led Framework  
 
The Trust has had regard to NHS Improvement’s well-led framework in arriving at its 
overall evaluation of the organisation’s performance and in developing its approach to 
internal control, board assurance framework and the governance of quality. Further details 
are provided in the Annual Governance Statement and Quality Report. 
 
The Care Quality Commission undertook an inspection of the well-led question on 4 and 5 
December 2018 and rated the Trust as ‘Good’. The CQC stated that ‘There was effective, 
experienced and skilled leadership, a strong vision for the organisation and embedded 
values. The leadership had the capacity and capability to deliver high-quality sustainable 
care. Leaders understood the challenges to quality and sustainability and they were visible 
and approachable. There was a clear vision for the trust and strong values.’ 
 
Quality Governance 
 
Service quality is governed through the Board’s Clinical Governance Committee. The 
Quality Account sets out the Trust’s plans in relation to improving quality governance.  
 
Emergency Preparedness, Resilience and Response (EPRR) Assurance 
 
Based on the national RAG status for EPRR compliance Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust 
has completed the annual EPRR self-assessment. Subsequently Wiltshire Clinical 
Commissioning Group (CCG) conducted a confirm and challenge process and we have 
been rated by Wiltshire Clinical Commissioning Group and NHS England as achieving 
‘Full’ compliance; this has been attained for the second consecutive year.  
  
NHSE were assured by the quality of the process that has been established in conjunction 
with the Wiltshire Clinical Commissioning Group. 
 
As a category one responder, we are meeting our civil protection duties under the Civil 
Contingencies Act (2004). Full compliance means that arrangements are in place to 
appropriately address the core standards that the organisation is expected to achieve. 
   
 
PROMOTING BETTER HEALTH AND SUPPORT FOR OUR PATIENTS 
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Recognising staff who are also carers themselves 
We have joined forces with Wiltshire council health trainers to run a carers’ café, on the 
first Tuesday of each month, which is aimed at supporting our staff who are also carers.  
 
The council trainers are ideally placed to signpost to community support and develop 
those support networks, and this activity will also link in with the work they are already 
doing for the Trust on general wellbeing sessions for staff. 
 
Making Every Contact Count (MECC) 
MECC is an initiative which aims to ensure that every conversation with a patient is as 
useful as possible, and is not repeated with different health professionals, i.e. the patient 
does not have conversations with four different individuals, when one would do.  
 
The Trust is proud to be part of an STP wide programme to develop MECC trainers, and 
this initiative, and we are about to embark on a train the trainer programme. Once we have 
our own trainers, we will then be in a position to roll the programme out internally. 
 
A growing band of volunteers 
There are currently 728 registered volunteers working across the whole of the Trust 
providing valuable support to patients, visitors and staff.  The Trust has this year been 
recognised for its approach to engaging with volunteers, and has been accepted onto the 
Helpforce Learning Network. This is a National Network for volunteering which raises the 
profile of their work and provides funding to support projects. Not every Trust is accepted 
into the Network and it is a testament to our Voluntary Services Manager, Jo Jarvis, that 
Salisbury was accepted. During 2018/19, 56 volunteers were recognised for their long 
service, of over 10 years, with their own award ceremony. At this first event, the awards 
were presented by the Chairman and the Volunteer Staff Governor. 
 
SUPPORTING OUR STAFF TO PROVIDE BEST CARE  
 
Health Coaching 
Health Coaching is an approach that guides and prompts people to be active participants 
in behavioural change through a transformation in their relationships with their clinicians. 
Health coaching is an umbrella term for multiple applications of a coaching approach: 
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During 2018 we have started to build our capacity to develop a health coaching culture. 
More staff have now been trained as trainers to deliver health coaching and sessions have 
been run with different staff groups ranging from the executive team to all our new 
students. Our facilitators have delivered both internal and external training to the wider 
healthcare community. 
 
Student Mentors 
All students on placement need a suitably qualified mentor. In the past year, compliance 
with mentorship training has increased, thus increasing the availability of suitable mentors. 
With the introduction of new NMC Standards and the subsequent change from the role of 
mentor to that of Supervisor and Assessor from September 2019, the Education Team are 
currently providing training to ensure all staff will be appropriately trained to function as 
Supervisors and adequate numbers of Assessors will also be available. 
 
Mental Health First Aid 
We are taking up a place on an upcoming Mental Health First Aid ‘Train the Trainer’ 
course, with a reserved place on a second course later in the year, with the intention of 
rolling out Mental Health First Aid. This aims to train people to identify signs of 
stress/anxiety in themselves and others, and to be able to adopt or advise coping 
mechanisms which will avoid issues developing further. 
 
Mental Health Awareness Week 
Mental Health awareness week in 2019 ran from 13 -19col
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Staff Engagement Group 
With the aim of gaining a better understanding of the hopes and aspirations of the wider 
workforce, a new staff engagement group has embarked on a number of exercises 
designed to improve the working lives of all Trust employees. Such activities have led to 
the creation of a walking map, the development of a staff benefits booklet and through 
collaborative work with both the catering and estates departments, improvement to a 
number of daily processes. 
 
Ongoing activities are focused on feedback linked to both the staff survey results and the 
Trust’s Health and Wellbeing offering. Input from the group is felt to be imperative in 
relation to both of these topics especially if meaningful initiatives are to be developed. 
 
Real opportunities exist in the upcoming year and a number of activities to further promote 
the hopes and aspirations of the group are planned. Through such events and regular 
meetings we hope to improve awareness of the needs of the workforce and create a staff 
voice that truly helps to shape the future direction of Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust. 
 
 
WORKING WITH OUR STAKEHOLDERS, PARTNERS AND LOCAL COMMUNITY  
 
Multi-agency discharge events (MADE) 
The Trust organised two MADE Events (December 18 and January 19) working in 
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REMUNERATION REPORT 
 
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee’s Annual Statement on 
Remuneration  
 
As the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee, I am pleased to present our 
remuneration report for 2018/19. 
 
There were no changes to the Trust’s remuneration policy for very senior managers in 
2018/19. 
 
Senior managers have the authority or responsibility for directing and controlling the major 
activities of the Trust and for Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust this covers the Chairman, 
the Executive and Non-Executive Directors. It is important to note that the Remuneration 
Committee of the Board has responsibility for setting the terms and conditions for the 
Executive Directors, while responsibility for setting the terms and conditions for the 
Chairman and Non-Executive Directors lies with the Council of Governors, which is 
advised by the Performance Committee.  
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develop as individuals and 
as teams 
 
Resources - making best 
use of our resources to 
achieve a financially 
sustainable future, securing 
the best outcomes within 
available resources 

Benefits Benefits in kind relate to 
either the provision of a car, 
training or additional 
pension contributions. 
Salary for executive 
Directors  includes any 
amount received (See 
Basic salary on how this 
component supports short 
and long term strategic 
objective/goal of the Trust) 

(See above) (see above) 

Pension  Provides a solid basis for 
recruitment and retention of 
top leaders in sector. 
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Where an individual Director is paid more than the Prime Minister, the Trust has taken 
steps to assure itself that remuneration is set at a competitive rate in relation to other 
similar NHS Foundation Trusts and that this rate enables the Trust to attract, motivate and 
retain senior managers with the necessary abilities to manage and develop the Trust’s 
activities fully for the benefit of patients. This has been benchmarked against the NHSI 
guidance for pay for very senior managers.  
 
Remuneration of Non-Executive Directors 
 
The Trust has an established Remuneration Committee. This Committee is responsible for 
the appointment, remuneration and appraisal of the Trust Chairman and Non-Executive 
Directors. The Committee reviewed national NHS Trust Chairman and Non-Executive 
Directors’ remuneration benchmarking data and agreed to recommend to the Council of 
Governors that the level of remuneration for the Trust Chairman and the Non-Executive 
Directors should be in line with similar-sized NHS Foundation Trusts in the South West 
region. The Committee recommended the following remuneration for Non-Executive 
Directors outlined below:
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contribution to the financial 
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leaves a scheme and chooses to transfer the benefits accrued in their former scheme. The 
pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the individual has accrued as a 
consequence of their total membership of the pension scheme, not just their service in a 
senior capacity to which the disclosure applies. The CETV figures and the other pension 
details, include the value of any pension benefits in another scheme or arrangement which 
the individual has transferred to the NHS pension scheme. They also include any 
additional pension benefit accrued to the member as a result of their purchasing additional 
years of pension service in the scheme at their own cost. CETVs are calculated within the 
guidelines and framework prescribed by the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries. 
 
Real Increase in CETV  
 
This reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer. It takes account of 
the increase in accrued pension due to inflation, contributions paid by the employee 
(including the value of any benefits transferred from another pension scheme or 
arrangement).   
 
Median Remuneration that Relates to the Workforce (Including Fair Pay Multiple) – 
these figures are subject to audit 
 
Reporting bodies are required to disclose the relationship between the remuneration of the 
highest-paid director in their organisation and the median remuneration of the 
organisation’s workforce. The banded remuneration of the highest paid director in the 
financial year 2018/19 was £175,000 (£170,000 in 2017/2018).  This was 6.6 times (6.6 
times (2017/18,) the median remuneration of the workforce, which was £26,600 (£25,600 
in 2017/18).   
 
In 2018/2019, two employees (two in 2017/18) received remuneration in excess of the 
highest paid director. Remuneration ranged from £13,100 to £202,000 (£12,710 to 
£185,000 in 2017/18). Total remuneration includes salary, non-consolidated performance-
related pay and benefits-in-kind. It does not include severance payments, employer 
pension contributions and the cash equivalent transfer value of pensions.   
 
Payments for loss of office 
 
There were no payments made to senior managers for loss of office in 2017/18 or 
201 -
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The above 3 tables are subject to audit.  

Sickness Absence 
The table below compares the total sickness absence of 2017/18 with that of 2018/19. It 
shows that the total days lost have increased, with a corresponding increase in the total 
staff years, producing no change in the average of eight working days lost: 
 

 
1 Apr 2017 to 31 Mar 2018 1 Apr 2018 to 31 Mar 2019 

Total Days Lost 23,750 23,812 
Total Staff Years 2,890 2,978 
Average Working Days 
Lost Per WTE 8 8 

 

During the course of this year, we have reviewed our sickness absence management 
policy and created a managers’ toolkit for practical use in continuing to improve our 
approach to both short and long term absences. Sickness absence is regularly reported at 
Directorate Performance reviews and Trust Board level. 

Policies 

All policies have a time-limited review date and are reviewed for compliance with current 
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Health and safety maintains an electronic and hard copy records for evidence purposes. 
Four further areas for audit will be selected at the September 2019 health and safety 
committee meeting.   
 
Consultancy Expenditure - Off Payroll Payments  
 
Table 1: Off-payroll engagements longer than 6 months 

   
For all off-payroll engagements as of 31 March 2019, for more than £245 per day and 
that 
last longer than six months:   
  Number 

Number of existing engagements as of 31 March 2019 12 

Of which, the number that have existed: 

for less than one year at the time of reporting 8 

for between one and two years at the time of reporting 3 

for between 2 and 3 years at the time of reporting 1 

Clinical Area  Corporate  Self  Date 

Sexual Health 82.0 89.0 2016 

Endoscopy 94.7 78.4 2016 

Laverstock 81.0 84.1 2017 

Dermatology 90.2 63.3 2017 

ED 97.2 90.0 2018 
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for between 3 and 4 years at the time of reporting 0 

for 4 or more years at the time of reporting 0
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We will create a plan, from the feedback, which is intended to be limited to two visible and 
tangible actions for each of the three areas of concern. This plan will then be sent out for 
consultation across all the above groups and Executive Directors with feedback by the 6 
May 2019. The aim is to publish and implement the plan directly after the 23 May 2019 
Trust Board meeting. 
 
 
EQUALITY, DIVERSITY & INCLUSION (EDI) REPORT 
 
Our Approach to Diversity and Inclusion 
 
We respect and value the diversity of our patients, their relatives and carers, and our staff 
and are committed to meeting the needs and expectations of the diverse communities we 
serve, providing high quality care. 
 
The Trust has undertaken a considerable amount of work on Diversity & Inclusion (D&I), 
which helps improve patient services and promote fairness and equality of opportunity for 
staff. The D&I Committee reports to the Workforce Committee and determines the 
strategic direction on D&I, based on current legislation and national initiatives. 
 
Action to date - Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Q4 2018 
 
In October 2018, The Trust appointed a new Head of EDI. Following a review, an overview 
of current equality statistics and proposed actions to drive the EDI agenda forward within 
the annual Equality Report was shared with both the Workforce Committee and the Trust 
Board in December 2018.   
 
The report identified the need to re-establish staff support networks such as the BAME 
network and a ‘Diversity Champions’ programme. The BAME network will review and 
amend the draft Workplace Race Equality Standard (WRES) Action Plan, which was also 
included.  
 
The Head of EDI attends the NHS Leadership Academy Inclusion Network for Wessex & 
Thames Valley and the South West Inclusion Network. Active participation in these 
networks will continue with the purpose of identifying and sharing best practice. 
 
The Trust had previously identified a number of ‘Diversity Champions’ representing race 
and ethnicity, disability, gender and LGBT staff. These were originally related to relevant 
staff networks which had become inactive apart from the LGBT network, called the 
Rainbow Shed.  
 
The Rainbow Shed is led by the Trust’s Lesbian, Gay, Bi-Sexual and Transgender (LGBT) 
Diversity Champion. The group has been increasing its activities in raising awareness of 
LGBT issues. The Trust also runs an LGBT Allies scheme for non-LGBT staff members. 
Both groups are identified by rainbow lanyards, which signify a commitment to EDI and 
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programme. The FTSUG and Head of EDI have implemented a Training programme, 
detailed below. 
 
The Head of EDI is taking part in a self-assessment to become a FTSU Ambassador. This 
training will allow him to work closely with the FTSUG to achieve her duties. Together they 
are reviewing the informal networks staff use to raise issues and intend to use the 
information gathered to establish a network of FTSU Ambassadors to support the FTSUG 
in line with national guidance. 
 
TRAINING 
 
Equality, Diversity, Inclusion and Freedom to Speak Up Training 
The Trust is currently reviewing its EDI training and assessing training requirements to 
further support the FTSU programme. 
 
All staff are required to undertake the national NHS E-learning package for equality; this 
forms part of the initial induction programme. This package is being reviewed, but as it is a 
national product it may be difficult to amend. The Trust has developed an introductory 
session for EDI and the FTSU programme to be included as part of the mandatory new 
staff inductions.  
 
Similarly, new, interactive workshops are being initiated as part of LGBT History Month. 
These workshops are open to all Trust staff, with the aim of increasing knowledge and 
understanding of: 
• Equality, Diversity and Inclusion 
• How EDI relates to Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust 
• Diversity in the wider community related to Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust 
• The dynamics of stereotyping and unconscious bias 
• How to explore personal and organisational values 
• The workings of the ‘Freedom to Speak Up’ Programme 
 
The EDI and FTSU Training sessions will be run on a quarterly basis and open to all staff 
and volunteers within the Trust. The Trust Board will be attending a session in September 
2019 to actively take part in this training. 
  
As part of the Trust’s regular corporate governance activities the first of a series of reports 
on the EDI programme were presented to the Trust Governors in February 2019.   
 
Future plans for 2019/20 
The first meeting of the re-established BAME staff network took place in January 2019. 
The network will meet on a monthly basis and is tasked with encouraging other BAME staff 
to take part. 
 
The BAME network has been tasked with developing the draft WRES action plan. This 
action plan will form the basis of action to address some of the issues of BAME 
progression and representation at a senior level within the organisation. 
 
Arrangements are in place for other EDI networks to meet next month which includes 
reviewing the Dignity at Work Ambassadors programme. A Women’s network is in the 
early stages and will develop over the coming months. 
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Once set up, the networks will nominate Diversity Champions to represent them at the 
wider EDI Committee. They will attend that committee to report progress of the networks 
and raise any issues. 
 
The FTSUG will recruit a number of FTSU Ambassadors in accordance with guidance 
from the national FTSUG’s office. She will work with the Head of EDI to identify and select 
a range of individuals who will receive relevant training.  
 
Equality Objectives 2019/2022 
The Equality Act 2010 requires every Trust to set at least one Equality Objective. The EDI 
Committee, together with staff and patient groups, will be tasked with identifying a number 
of objectives by June 2019. 
 
Communications to deliver culture change 
The Head of EDI and the FTSUG are working closely with the Corporate Communications 
team to develop a delivery plan for the EDI and FTSU programmes.  
 
It is recognised that it is 
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Dr. Nick Marsden – Chairman (Independent) 
Nick Marsden joined the Trust in January 2014. Before this he was an NHS non-executive 
director and vice chairman at Southampton. He has an engineering Ph.D and also 
commercial experience having held several senior executive roles at IBM, before 
becoming Senior Vice President for Service at Danka Europe.  
  
Cara Charles–Barks – Chief Executive  
Cara Charles-Barks has a wide range of clinical and management experience in both the 
NHS and Australian healthcare systems. She qualified as a registered nurse in Australia in 
1991 and, having worked in London for three years, moved back to Australia where she 
became a nurse consultant, then clinical practice manager and subsequently Nursing 
Director. She was then Deputy Chief Operating Officer in Peterborough in the UK and, 
before coming to Salisbury, she was Deputy Chief Executive Officer and Chief Operating 
Officer at Hinchingbrooke Health Care NHS Trust.  
 
Tania Baker - Non-Executive Director (Independent) 
Tania Baker joined the Trust in June 2016 for a three year period. She was Chief 
Executive Officer at health analytics company, Dr Foster where she was involved in 
developing the business nationally and internationally. Before this Tania held senior 
appointments in private healthcare and was Commercial Director at Aviva Health 
insurance. Tania is the Senior Independent Director. 
 
Michael von Bertele CB, OBE (Independent) 
Michael joined the Trust in November 2016 for a three year period. As an army junior 
doctor, he trained in occupational and environmental medicine, and became a consultant 
in 1992. He has served in the UN Protection Force in Croatia, was chief medical planner in 
the Ministry of Defence and was Director General of the Army Medical Services. He retired 
in 2012 and worked for Save the Children International until 2015.  
 
Dr. Christine Blanshard – 
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Dr Michael Marsh- Non-Executive Director (Independent) 
 
Michael Marsh is a leading paediatric consultant who joined the Trust in November 2016. 
Before this he was Medical Director for Specialised Commissioning for NHS England's 
London Region. He has held a number of senior positions in paediatric care and women 
and children’s services in Southampton, and was their Medical Director for six years until 
2015. Michael left the Trust 31 December 2018. 
 
At the end of the first term of office, the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors are subject 
to an evaluation by the Governors Performance Committee, which will make a 
recommendation to the full Council as to their individual suitability to serve a second term. 
The removal of the Chairman or a Non-Executive Director of the Trust requires the 
approval of three-quarters of the members of the Counci
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE 
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Governors are also given a number of other opportunities to become involved or sample 
the ‘patient’s experience’. For example, governors and volunteers visit wards and 
outpatient areas gathering real time feedback from patients about their hospital stay, which 
enables ward staff to resolve issues quickly. The Trust works with the governors’ 
Membership and Communications committee to provide ‘Medicine for Members’ lectures.   
 
A dedicated section on the Trust’s website and intranet provides details of each governor, 
their interests and a means for members to communicate with them. There are also 
members’ newsletters for staff and people in the public constituencies as well as formal 
constituency meetings where governors can gather the views of their members.  
 
Table 1: Code of Governance Provisions included in the Annual Report and their 
location 
 Code Provision Annual Report location 
A.1.1 The schedule of matters reserved for the board of 

directors should include a clear statement detailing 
the roles and responsibilities of the council of 
governors. This statement should also describe how 
any disagreements between the council of 
governors and the board of directors will be 
resolved. The annual report should include this 
schedule of matters or a summary statement of how 
the board of directors and the council of governors 
operate, including a summary of the types of 
decisions to be taken by each of the boards and 
which are delegated to the executive management 
of the board of directors. 

Code of Governance 

A.1.2 The annual report should identify the chairperson, 
the deputy chairperson (where there is one), the 
chief executive, the senior independent director (see 
A.4.1) and the chairperson and members of the 
nominations, audit and remuneration committees. It 
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ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 
 
SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY 
 
As Accounting Officer, I have responsibility for maintaining a sound system of internal 
control that supports the achievement of Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust’s policies, aims 
and objectives, whilst safeguarding the public funds and departmental assets for which I 
am personally responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities assigned to me. 
Re
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THE RISK AND CONTROL FRAMEWORK 
 
Risk Management 
 
The Trust understands that healthcare provision and the activities associated with caring 
for patients, employing staff, providing premises and managing finances will always 
involve an inherent degree of risk. Good risk management practice requires that identified 
risk is analysed, evaluated, treated and actions followed up for the purposes of monitoring 
and review to further improve. 
 
The overall objective of the Risk Management Strategy is to ensure that robust risk 
management processes are in place which provide assurance to the Board that the Trust 
is discharging its responsibilities as an NHS Foundation Trust in ensuring business and 
financial acumen, improving services and the quality of care provision, whilst operating as 
a model employer and service provider in achieving the Trust’s operational and strategic 
objectives. 
 
The Risk Management Strategy sets out the strategic goals towards which the Trust is 
working with regard to risk management, and provides a framework that sets out the key 
responsibilities for managing risk within the organisation, including ways in which risk is 
identified, evaluated and controlled.  
 
The organisation’s Risk Management Strategy is based on an on-going process designed 
to: 

• Identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the organisation’s policies, aims 
and objectives 

• Evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be 
realised; and how to manage them most appropriately 

 
Risks continued to be identified throughout 2018/19 from a variety of sources, including: 
 
• Internal and external reviews  
• Internal and External Audit 
• Risk assessments 
• Complaints, Incidents and claims 
• Alerts received from the Central Alert System 
• Consultation with staff and patients 
• Mandatory/statutory targets 
 
Risk Registers 
 
The risk assessment and risk register procedure is set out within the Trust’s Risk 
Management Policy. This policy gives clear instruction on the risk assessment process 
including risk identification, evaluation, treatment, and monitoring. The policy describes 
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All risks are assessed for their likelihood and consequence using a 5x5 risk matrix in 
accordance with the Risk Management Policy. In order to ensure a standardised approach 
the same method of risk assessment documentation and scoring is used for all risks of all 
types, and at all levels (departmental, directorate, corporate).  
 
The Risk Management Policy makes it clear that it is not always possible to reduce an 
identified risk completely and it ma
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Major risks 2019/20 
 

As with all NHS organisations, we face continual challenges in balancing the need to  ,  w il io-1easncng    
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Patient involvement in risk 
The Trust’s patient and public involvement and consultation process ensures compliance 
with relevant legislation, and is described in the Patient and Public Involvement Strategy. 
All departments, both clinical and non-clinical, are responsible for planning and 
undertaking patient and public involvement initiatives, where appropriate. The Trust 
completes an annual patient and public engagement report, which is reported to Trust 
Board. 
 
When developing plans for significant service changes, the Trust has to show how 
stakeholders might be affected and to ensure they are consulted and how their views will 
be taken into consideration in developing proposals for change. Equality impact 
assessments are part of this process. The Trust works closely with patients and public 
stakeholders to ensure that the impact of any changes on patients is minimised. 
 
The Trust works with the local Healthwatch to enable regular liaison and communication, 
to identify opportunities for the involvement of Healthwatch in Trust activities. 
 
As a Foundation Trust, we also inform the Trust’s Council of Governors through its 
relevant working groups of proposed changes, including how potential risks to patients will 
be minimised. 
 
 
GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS 
 
Corporate Governance 
 
The Trust ensures compliance with legal requirements, the NHS Constitution and the 
Licence through its corporate governance arrangements. In particular, risks to compliance 
are identified through the regular review and reporting that inform the Board Assurance 
Framework and Corporate Risk Register.  There is additional regular review through the 
Audit Committee and the Clinical Governance Committee, through to the board. 
 
The Trust board assesses its own effectiveness and that of its committees to ensure it is 
discharging its responsibilities appropriately.  The Board’s sub committees conduct an 
annual review of performance against their terms of reference which is reported to the 
Trust Board, as set out in the Integrated Governance Framework.  
 
During 2018/19 there have been no changes to the Executive Directors and only one 
resignation of a Non-Executive Director in December 2018. This has provided stability in 
the leadership of the Trust. 
 
Reporting and informing from Board committees to the Trust Board is through a standard 
escalation report produced for each subcommittee meeting. Each board committee is 
clearly linked to corporate objectives and associated risks via its terms of reference and 
the assurance framework.   
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The Accountability Framework is the underpinning document describing the performance 
management systems in place at directorate level through to the executive.   
 
The Trust assesses its compliance with the Code of Governance annually through the 
Annual Report. New developments and information on governance are reviewed and 
incorporated into practice. The Board is held to account by the Council of Governors; the 
Council ensures that suitable non-executives are appointed to the Board. There are annual 
appraisals of all board members, overseen by the Remuneration Committee and the 
Governors’ Performance Committee. The Trust has not identified any risks to compliance 
with the NHS Foundation Trust condition four (FT Governance).  
 
In producing and certifying the Annual Governance Statement, the board expects to take 
account of; external/regulatory assessments of finance, quality and performance, feedback 
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The Integrated Governance Framework makes it clear that quality governance is the 
responsibility of the Board supported by the Clinical Governance Committee for 
continuously improving the quality of services and safeguarding high standards of care by 
creating an environment in which excellence in clinical care will flourish. 
 
The Clinical Governance Committee’s function is to provide assurance to the Board on 
patient safety, clinical effectiveness and patient experience by ensuring the supporting 
processes are embedded in Directorates and the Trust wide groups promote learning, best 
practice and compliance with all relevant statutory duties.  
 
Delivery of the Trust’s strategic objectives is underpinned by the publication of the annual 
quality report which sets out the progress made against our quality priorities in 2018/19 
and the quality priorities selected for 2019/20. Progress of the priorities is monitored via 
the Clinical Governance Committee. 
 
The Integrated Performance Report, which comprises of detailed reports on quality, 
operational performance, finance and workforce, has been received by the Board monthly 
and is considered in detail. Through 2019/20, work will continue to strengthen this report. 
 
Care Quality Commission 
 
The Trust is fully compliant with the requirements of registration with the Care Quality 
Commission. 
 
The last formal inspection undertaken by the CQC was 
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INFORMATION GOVERNANCE 
The Trust acknowledges the importance patients and staff place on the security, 
confidentiality, integrity and availability of corporate and personal information. The Trust is 
committed to proactively managing all its resources through clear leadership and 
accountability, which is underpinned by the Trusts values and behaviours through 
awareness and education. 
 
The Deputy Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Medical Director, Caldicott Guardian and 
Director of Finance/Senior Information Risk Owner (SIRO), oversee compliance and 
adherence to the Trusts Confidentiality, Information Risk & Security policies and 
procedures which define how the Trust proactively manages the security and 
confidentiality of personal information and systems. 
 
Information Governance arrangements within the organisation are constantly reviewed by 
the Trust. During the 2018-19 Data Security and Protection Toolkit (DSPT) year, the Trust 
self-reported one security incident to the Information Commissioners Office and NHS 
Digital. The incident involved irregularities identified during a routine audit which raised 
concerns.  A subsequent investigation by the external healthcare service provider 
concluded that a legitimate professional relationship had been in place at the time of 
access. No action was therefore necessary against the individual or the Trust. 
 
During 2018/19, work continued to ensure that a comprehensive and robust evidence 
based assurance programme exists to reinforce the work of the DSPT to demonstrate that 
the organisation can be trusted to maintain the confidentiality and security of personal 
information, increasing public confidence that the NHS and partner organisations can be 
trusted with personal data.  
 
The Trust continues to ensure that the EU General Data Protection, Network and 
Information System Regulations continue to be embedded into the fabric of the 
organisation.  Asset Owners and Information Asset Administrators evidence is internally 
audited and updated on a regular basis. The Trust has also committed time and resources 
to continually review policies, procedures and guidance to ensure changes in regulatory, 
legislative and best practice are incorporated.  
 
The completion of the 2018-19 DSPT self-assessment confirmed that the Trust met the 
100 mandatory evidence items required without the need to submit an improvement plan 
to NHS Digital. 
 
 
REVIEW OF ECONOMY, EFFICIENCY AND EFFECTIVENESS OF THE USE OF 
RESOURCES 
 
Financial Governance 
 
The Trust regularly reviews the economy, efficiency, and effectiveness of the use of 
resources through benchmarking, reference costs, regular meetings between directorates 
and the Executive Directors, and assessing performance against plans. Investments are 
determined against detailed business plans and outcomes are reviewed against those 
plans.  
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The key high risk findings included improvements required in information security and 
secure development principles alongside the need to instigate and improve policies and 
procedures for key systems across the Trust. 
 
The management have developed a full action plan to address the issues in 2019/20, 
which has been approved by the Trust Audit Committee. Whilst these control weaknesses 
are a significant concern, there were no material impacts found on the Trusts annual 
accounts for 2018/19.  
 
The risks identified centre on governance and integrity of digital system which have not 
impacted on clinical services. The Trust recognises strengthening the systems of internal 
control is a key priority for 2019/20 and this work will be overseen by the Audit Committee. 
 
9.      CONCLUSION 
 
Overall there is in place a dynamic process for the management of internal control which is 
reviewed and updated regularly by the Executive Team and various Board Committees 
that are in place in the Trust to help me meet my responsibilities as Accounting Officer. 
The Trust has identified the internal control issue as detailed in 8.1, and has plans in place 
to address this, most of which has been commenced during 2018/19. 
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Priority 1 – 
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Priority 2 – Improve patient flow through the hospital  

Senior review – by a 
senior doctor before 
noon 

 
A survey in March 
2019 highlighted that 
ward teams, when 
asked about patients 
being reviewed by 
midday , by a senior 
clinician, reported 
that  this had taken 
place.   

% of patients with an estimated discharge 
date set by month for the last 12 months  

(calculated from date time ward assigned not 
admission date)  

 

Flow out of  the Acute Medical Unit by 10 am  
 

 

 



Page 97  
 

 

  
Priority 2 – Improve patient flow through the hospital 
(continued)  
 

Patients who have a length of stay of  
more than 7 days

Discharges before midday (all wards)  
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Priority 3 – Improve recognition & management of 
deteriorating patients 
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Quality Account  

Introduction 

Quality accounts, which are also known as quality reports, are annual reports for the public that 
detail information on the quality of services the Trust provides for patients. They are designed to 
assure patients, families, carers, the public and commissioners that the Trust regularly scrutinises 
the services it provides and concentrates on those areas that require improvement. 

Quality accounts look back on the previous year’s performance explaining where the Trust is doing 
well and where improvement is needed. They also look forward, explaining the areas that have 
been identified as priorities for improvement as a result of consultation with patients and the public 
such as the Warminster Health, Wellbeing and Social Care Forum, our staff and governors in 
2018/2019.   

Part 1 

Our commitment to quality -  the Chief  Executive’s view  

I am proud to introduce the 2018/2019 quality account for Salisbury 
NHS Foundation Trust, in what has been an exciting and busy time 
in my second year here in Salisbury and in the 70th anniversary of 
the NHS.       

This time a year ago our hospital faced an unprecedented major 
incident, treating and caring for five patients who had been exposed 
to nerve agent poisoning.  Despite there being no precedent for the 
treatment of nerve agent poisoning in any healthcare system in the 
world, we never shut our doors to the public, and thanks to the 
expert care our staff provided, all three of these patients were later 
discharged.   Our staff showed amazing resilience, professionalism and dedication during what 
was a very difficult time and now, a year on, it is truly amazing to reflect on what our hospital 
withstood and achieved.  

I have always been so proud by the care and professionalism all the staff showed. And I was so 
pleased to see this reflected in our recent Care Quality Commission inspection, with the inspectors 
commenting “the team’s response to these major incidents was outstanding in terms of their 
commitment to provide effective and responsive care, their collaborative working and their focus 
on the safety and well-being of all staff and patients in the Emergency Department during this 
time”. Our critical care rating of ‘outstanding’ by the Care Quality Commission is testament to not 
only the outstanding response our critical care team provided during the incident, but the 
outstanding 
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What we did in 201 8/2019: 
The numbered points below indicate the quality priorities set for 2018/2019; the paragraph that 
follows is the progress made towards their achievement. 

Priority 1  Identify frail older people to ensure they receive effective care and treatment 
and reduce the number of patients who fall and injure themselves in hospital  

Description of the issue and reason we prioritis ed it:  

Our Trust vision is to provide an outstanding experience for every patient.  Frail older people form 
a significant proportion of emergency admissions. There is a need to plan and co-ordinate our 
services with our community partners so that frail older patients receive an early assessment, 
treatment and care plan by specialist teams to improve outcomes, avoid unnecessary admissions 
and reduce the length of time in hospital.  We also need to do more to identify patients with 
delirium to ensure they receive effective care and treatment.  We need to continue to reduce the 
number of patients who fall and injure themselves in hospital and, for those at the end of their life 
who wish to die at home, ensure a rapid discharge. 
 
What we did in 2018/2019 to improve:  
 
1.1 Improve the early identification of frail patients and  ensure they receive a specialist 

review and a comprehensive assessment with a personalised care plan  

Our Older People’s Assessment and Liaison (OPAL) team has continued to see older people with 
moderate or severe frailty to undertake a specialist assessment and personalised care plan before 
patients leave the Acute Medical Unit and Emergency Department. The OPAL team is able to 
make a rapid assessment and this year has seen 1398 patients and supported 588 patients to go 
home the same day and, where needed, provided short term care and support at home until the 
community team were able to takeover. 

Figure  1: Patients seen by the Older People’s Assessment and Liaison team (OPAL) and 
discharged the same day or within 24 hours
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1.2 Increase the number of frail patients who are able to go home from the Emergency  
Department and Acute Medical Unit with appropriate follow up.  

The OPAL team were able to support 588 moderately or severely frail patients to go home on the 
same day as they attended the Emergency Department or Acute Medical Unit.  The specialist 
team have also been able to support a total of 1281 of these patients to go home within 24 hours 
of assessment as shown in Figure 1. These patients were either followed up by the OPAL team at 
home, or by the community team, GP or at a rapid access clinic. 

1.2 Introduce a delirium care bundle which is a set of practices designed to improve the 
early identification of delirium so that pat ients receive appropriate treatment and care 

The delirium care bundle was tested on several wards earlier this year but there were challenges 
with its uptake.  As a result, the bundle was redesigned and made simpler and has been tested 
again with patients on Spire ward following staff training and education. Its uptake will continue to 
be monitored by the specialist team in dementia care on the weekly ward round and an audit will 
be undertaken next year to measure its effectiveness in providing best care. 

1.3 Set up an Older People’s Steering Group with acute and community partners to develop 
a frailty pathway for timely discharge.  

We have set up a Wiltshire wide Older People and Frailty Steering Group with our community 
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Figure  3: In-patient falls resulting in a fractured hip and rate of all fractures per 1000 bed 
days  

Measure  2018/19 
target  

2016/17
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track applications 
made  
Number of 
successful 
discharges to 
preferred place of 
care 

29 
(76%) 

52 
(68%) 

36 
(62%) 

�Ø 

Number of 
patients who died 
in hospital  

9 24 22  

 �× Better �Ù As expected �Ø Worse 
 
 
 
 
What our patients and public have told us and what we have done or will do to improve:  
�x ‘The team gave considerable support and encouragement to an elderly patient who could be 

uncooperative and unwilling at times. Caring staff’.  
�x ‘Excellent care and patience with the elderly’.  
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If the patient did not need to be seen in the Emergency Department, the paramedic was able to 
book a GP appointment for a patient or provide advice 



Page 110  
 

patients receive timely therapy. The team have seen more patients than in 2017/2018 and 
increased the number of patients discharged within 24 hours of admission to 92% (Figure 1).   

2.3 Increase the number of ambulatory care pathways to enable patients to be assessed, 
treated and discharged on the same day  

In December 2017, our new expanded Acute Medical Unit opened to increase the number of 
patients benefiting from ambulatory emergency care on the same day, either without admission to 
hospital at all, or admission for only a few hours. The key to success of ambulatory care is rapid 
assessment, diagnosis and treatment by a senior doctor in the Acute Medical Unit, Surgical 
Assessment Unit and Paediatric Department. Conditions such as chest pain, abdominal pain, 
uncomplicated infections and blood clots can all be managed safely in ambulatory care. All 
patients presenting to the Acute Medical Unit are now considered to have the potential to be 
managed as ambulatory patients. The average across the whole year, highlighted that 22% of 
patients were discharged from the Acute Medical Unit on the same day they were admitted 
compared to a target of over 
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1) Senior review – all patients should have a review by a senior doctor before midday to make a 
management and discharge decision if the patient is fit to go home. We are not currently 
collecting data to measure the timeliness of senior doctor reviews. However, a one off review in 
March 19 highlighted that ward teams, when asked about wheth
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3) Flow of patients from assessment units to inpatient wards should start as early as possible 
each day. Ideally, the first patient should arrive on the inpatient ward by 10.00 am.  Each ward 
has an afternoon ‘huddle’, whereby key staff get together to plan the next day discharges. At 
this meeting, ‘golden patients’ are identified for discharge by 10.00 am the following day and 
arrangements, such as, take home medication, the discharge summary and discharge 
summary are all prepared in advance.  
 
Figure 10 shows that in the first three quarters of 2018/2019, on average, 38% of patients were 
transferred out of the Acute Medical Unit to a ward by 10.00 am.  However, in the last quarter 
of 2018/2019, on average, only 22% of patients were able to move to an inpatient ward by 
10.00 am compared to a target of 25%.  This will continue to be a focus of improvement work 
in 2019/2020. 

Figure  10: Flow of patients out of Acute Medical Unit  by 10.00 am  (target 25%)  

 
LOS = length of stay 
 

4) Early discharge – a third of patients should be discharged from the ward before midday.  
Figure 11 shows that on average only 16 - 18% of patients are discharged before midday 
compared to a 33% target. This relies on patients having an expected discharge date within 14 
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Figure  11:  Early discharge before midday  (target 33%)  
 

 
LOS = length of stay 

5) Review – a review of patients with a length of stay over 7 days by a senior team with a clear 
‘home first’ mind set.  Once a week, senior staff from the hospital meet with our community 
partners to review patients who are medically fit for discharge who have been in hospital for 
more than 7 days. The meeting decides on what further actions need to be taken by the 
hospital or community teams to progress a patient’s discharge. This involves our community 
partners visiting specific wards to discuss patient discharge plans with the staff to assist with 
arrangements if needed. 

Figure 12 shows the number of stranded patients (who have been in hospital between 7 to 20 
days and are fit to leave) and super stranded patients (who have been in hospital for 21 days or 
more and are fit to leave) and patients that are medically fit that have been reviewed by the 
specialist team (pink line).  These patients are reviewed by the senior team every week. 
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Figure  12: Patients reviewed by a senior multi -agency team with a length of stay over 7 
days  
 

 
Stranded patient - is a patient in hospital for 7 – 
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they go home or move to a re-ablement bed or community hospital as soon as they are fit to leave 
hospital.  This is described in priority 1.3.  

2.4  Monitor th e number of patients who have been in hospital for 7 days or longer and   
identify opportunities to reduce delays in discharge  

Once a week, a senior group of multi-agency staff from the hospital, community services, social 
care and Clinical Commissioning Group meet to discuss all patients who have been in hospital for 
7 days or longer. They talk through the patient’s journey and what action needs to be taken to 
progress the discharge and, where needed, escalate to a senior decision maker. Wiltshire Clinical 
Commissioning Group, hospital and community teams review the reasons for delays to plan 
further improvement work. Figure 12 shows the number of patients reviewed by the senior team 
this year. 

2.5 Working in partnership with care homes to introduce the concept of a trusted assessor 
to enable a patient to receive one assessment accepted by all providers 

A trusted assessment is one that is undertaken by formal agreement by a nurse or therapist with 
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  �× Better �Ù As expected �Ø Worse  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.3 Continue to audit and report the outcomes to the clinical teams on severe sepsis 

screening of inpatients using the ‘sepsis six’ pathway  
 
We have sustained the same percentage of adults and children screened for sepsis as inpatients 
through an ongoing education and audit programme and improved to 100% in February 2019 with 
the full implementation of NEWS2.   

 
Figure  14: Sepsis screening  of inpatients   1
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The data in figure 15 shows there is variation across two years with no sustained improvement 
over time. This may be due to the small numbers of adults and children being treated with 
antibiotics for sepsis and will continue to be a focus for improvement work during 2019/2020. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Figure  15: Sepsis treatment of inpatients   

 
LCL = lower control limit, UCL = upper control limit. 
 

3.5 Test interventions to reduce hospital acquired pneumonia on one ward  

We had planned to test an intervention to prevent hospital acquired pneumonia which is caused by 
high levels of bacteria, sometimes from infected saliva and secretions, entering the lungs. When 
we reviewed the studies about the prevention of hospital acquired pneumonia of non-ventilated 
adult patients, we found that a strong evidence base did not exist. However, of the studies 
published, mouth care was the most frequently used intervention and was associated with a 
decrease in hospital acquired pneumonia. 
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Figure  17:  Safety Thermometer data of the number of inpatients with a catheter with a new 
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There is clear research evidence to show that staff who feel engaged and can contribute to 
improvements and are well supported provide better patient care. Improving the wellbeing of our 
staff not only improves their quality of life but also our patient’s experience of hospital care. We 
need to do more work to support staff with long term conditions, such as diabetes and arthritis, 
and improve recruitment using innovative solutions, focus attention on supporting areas with high 
levels of sickness absence and continue to expand and improve our Shape Up @ Salisbury 
campaign.  Overall, we need to do more to improve our offer of health and wellbeing support to 
our staff. 

What w e did in 2018/2019 to improve:  

4.1 
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4.2 As part of our Organisational Development strategy, develop a staff health and 
wellbeing programme which focuses on self -
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2019, the hospital became a smoke free site and we supported our staff who wanted to quit by 
giving them a free 2 week supply of nicotine replacement therapy.  All staff, and in particular front 
line staff, were encouraged to have the flu vaccine to keep our patients safe.  65.7% of our staff 
were vaccinated against flu, a slight decrease from 67% last year. 

4.4 Refresh and relaunch the ‘Shape Up @ Salisbury’ campaign to ensure our staff have 
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Part 2B: This section sets out our quality priorities for 201 9/2020 
2.1 Our priorities for quality improvement in 201 9/2020 and why we have 
chosen them  
Our quality priorities in 2018/2019 showed a positive picture of improvement in the care pathway 
of moderately and severely frail older people. Although there was a reduction in the number of 
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The following section describes the issue, the reason for prioritising it and what we are planning to 
do: 
 
Priority 1  Work with our partners to prevent avoidable ill health and -
/P </2(he)e he-altsu 
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Priority 3  Work with our partners to i mprove patient flow through the hospital  

Description of the issue and reason we prioritis ed it:  

Having a good flow of patients through the hospital is crucial to ensuring that patients are cared for 
in the right place at the right time by the right people. Good patient flow improves outcomes and 
enhances patient experience. Although, we have undertaken a significant amount of work in 
2018/2019 with our partners to improve flow through the wards, measurements show that we have 
not improved as much as we expected and this remains a top priority for 2019/2020. 

What we will do in 201 9/2020: 

3.1 Improve compliance with the SAFER care bundle to ensure the right patient is in the right      
place at the right time. 
 
3.2 Increase the number of patients who are able to be discharged to their preferred place of care 
at the end of their life. 
 
3.3 Work towards achieving 60% best practice (a set of practices when used together improve 

patient outcomes) compliance for patients with chronic obstructive pulmonary disease. 
 

3.4 Work towards achieving 80% best practice compliance for patients having an emergency 
laparotomy. 

 
How will we report progress throughout the year? 
 
Compliance with best practice for patients with chronic obstructive pulmonary disease and an 
emergency abdominal laparotomy will be reported to the Clinical Management Board.  Patient flow 
and ambulatory pathways will be reported by the Patient Flow Programme Management Board to 
the Outstanding Every Time Board. Patients able to be discharged to their preferred place of care 
will be reported to the End of Life Steering Group. 
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Priority 4   Design new models of care to provide patients with more convenient access to 
services and make the most of digital care  

Description of the issue and reason we prioritis ed it:  

The NHS is undertaking a journey of transformation, whilst experiencing rising demand for its 
services, and reduction in social care provision, as the population ages and more people live with 
long term conditions. We need to do more to design new models of care to provide patients with 
more convenient access to services and health information. The roll out of same day emergency 
care is one of the commitments in the NHS Long Term Plan and will reduce pressure on hospital 
beds, improve length of stay and patient experience. By moving care out of hospitals and closer to 
the patient we will improve the health of the population and the quality of care.   

We need to make the most of digital care and get the most out of our IT systems to drive efficiency 
and deliver improved patient outcomes. We also need to use the data from our systems to benefit 
patients in the acute care setting and continued care once they leave hospital as part of a whole 
health economy. 

What we will do in 201 9/2020: 

4.1 Work with our partners to reduce admissions and extend our Rapid Access Care of the Elderly   
clinics (RACE) to other parts of Wiltshire to provide care closer to patient’s homes. 

 
4.2 Achieve 75% of patients with a confirmed pulmonary embolus being managed in a same day 

setting where clinically appropriate. 
 

4.3 Achieve 50% of patients with confirmed community acquired pneumonia being managed in a 
same day setting where clinically appropriate. 

 
4.4 Achieve 75% of patients with confirmed atrial fibrillation being managed in a same day setting 

where clinically appropriate. 
 

4.5 Work with our partners to transform the way we provide outpatient services, including digital 
solutions, by achieving our action plan year 1 milestones. 

 
4.6 Work with our partners to develop the hospital site as a health and wellbeing campus over the 

next 5 years. 
 
How will we report progress throughout the year? 
 
Frailty pathway work and same day emergency care will be reported by the Patient Flow 
Programme Management Board to the Outstanding Every Time Board.  The development of the 
hospital site will be reported to the Board.   
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Priority 5:  Improve the health and wellbeing of our staff  

Description of the issue and reason we prioritis ed it:  

Health and wellbeing is now recognised as more than a matter for individual attention – successful 
organisations have recognised that good health is a key enabler to good business. Our staff
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�× Better  �Ù As expected �Ø Worse 

The assessment scores for five of the six areas increased and all six scores were better than the 
2018 national average. The patient assessor statement said ‘an excellent and well-designed 
hospital but with storage problems in some of the older areas.  However, there is a serious car 
parking shortage both for staff, patients and visitors. Given the vast size of the area covered by the 
hospital and specialist units, this is a pressing problem. 

The new signage is a great improvement. The Art-work is much appreciated. The public amenities 
are exemplary. 
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Participation in Clinical Audits  

During 2018/2019, 51 national clinical audits and 2 national confidential enquiries covered relevant 
health services that Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust provides. During this period, Salisbury NHS 
Foundation Trust participated in 49 (96.1%) national clinical audits, and 2 (100%) national 
confidential enquiries of the national clinical audits and national confidential enquiries which it was 
eligible to participate in.  

The national clinical audits and national confidential enquiries in which Salisbury NHS Foundation 
Trust was eligible to participate in during 2018/2019 are listed in Figure 19.  

The national clinical audits and national confidential enquiries that Salisbury NHS Foundation 
Trust participated in, and for which data collection was completed during 2018/2019, are listed in 
Figure 19 alongside the number of cases submitted to each audit or enquiry as a percentage of 
the number of registered cases required by the terms of that audit or enquirsdEdnt 
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Elective surgery  
(National PROMs Programme) 

Yes Yes 2016/17 
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National Oesophago-gastric 
Cancer (NAOGC) 

Yes Yes 100% Investigates whether the care received by 
patients with oesophago-gastric cancer is 
consistent with national standards. 

National Ophthalmology Audit Yes Yes 100% Examines key indicators of cataract surgical 
quality. 
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which aims to make sure that clinicians are actively engaged in all relevant national audits and 
confidential enquiries as well as undertaking baseline assessments against all NICE guidelines 
and quality standards. This enables the Trust to compare our performance against other similar 
Trusts and to decide on further improvement actions. The annual programme also includes a 
number of audits agreed as part of the contract with our Clinical Commissioning Groups.   The 
Trust took part in the following additional national 
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National Diabetes Inpatient audit 2017  
 
A point prevalence audit of diabetes inpatient care in England and Wales. 
 
Standard  Trust 2017  National mean 

2017 
Trust vs national mean 

2017 

Foot risk assessment within 24 hours of 
admission 

100% 64.9% �× 

Diabetic patients reviewed by the diabetes 
team 

63.3% 34.7% �× 

Prescription errors 13% 19% �Ø 

Medication errors 13% 31.3% �Ø 

Glucose management errors 1.9% 18.5% �Ø 

Insulin errors 7.4% 18.6% �Ø 

Mild hypoglycaemic episodes (3.0 – 3.9 
mmol/l) 

10.4% 16.7% �Ø 

Severe hypoglycaemic episodes (less than 
3.0 mmol/l) 

5.3% 7.1% �Ø 

�× & �ØBetter  �Ù As expected �Ø Worse 

 
The following improvement actions have been taken in 2018: 
�x Ongoing ward based education and training programme 
�x Improved the optimisation of patients with diabetes before surgery 
�x Introduced a system to spot patients who have had hypoglycaemic episodes so they are seen 

by a specialist nurse in diabetes care to prevent recurrence. 
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Local clinical audits  
The reports of 154 (100%) local clinical audits were reviewed by the Trust in 2018/2019 and 
Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust intends to take, or has taken, the following actions to improve the 
quality of healthcare provided. 

Local procedural sedation audit 2018  
 
This audit examined all cases of patients who had sedation for a procedure in the Emergency 
department (July – November 2018) to ascertain whether the national standards were met. 
Standard  Trust national 

audit 2017  
(48 cases)  

Local audit 20188-cedure in 
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1b) Healthy food for NHS staff, visitors and patients 100% £137,641 
 

1 Improving staff health and wellbeing 
 

1c) Improving the uptake of flu vaccinations for front 
line staff 

 
        

95% 

5
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2. In the last 12 months have you experienced musculoskeletal problems as a result of work activities?  An 
improvement is required 
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2) The Trust has a low sickness absence rate compared to a national average. There are clear 
processes and guidance in place for managing sickness and absence and enabling better staff 
support. 

 
 
 
 
 
Well- led inspection  
 
On 4 and 5 December 2018, Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust had an announced inspection by the 
Care Quality Commission of the well-led domain. The Care Quality Commission rated well-led as 
good.  
 
They found effective, experienced and skilled leadership, a strong vision for the Trust and 
embedded values. The leadership had the capacity and capability to delivery high quality 
sustainable care. Leaders understood the challenges to quality and sustainability and they were 
visible and approachable. There was a clear vision fo
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Figure 24: Trust rating  for each of the * eight  core services and for the Trust overall  at the 
Care Quality Commission inspection in December 2015  

 
*The spinal injuries centre was not inspected as a core service in 2015. 

 
 
The Care Quality Commission found 26 things that the Trust should do to improve.  We plan to 
take the following actions in 2019/2020: 
Well- led:  
�x Write a quality improvement strategy and build the workforce capacity and capability to 

implement sustainable change and embed it within the organisation. 
�x Introduce an integrated performance report to identify variations and the need for improvement. 
�x Improve access to IT equipment and systems to support staff in their work, in particular, the 

diagnostic test requesting system and implementing electronic prescribing and administration 
of medicines. 

�x Review the Freedom to Speak Up Guardian arrangements to reflect best practice guidance. 
Urgent and e mergency services:  
�x Undertake a workforce review of Emergency Department staffing to ensure there are sufficient 

numbers of staff on duty to meet the needs of the patients. 
�x Complete the work in the mental health assessment room in the Emergency Department to 

ensure it is compliant with national recommendations. 
�x Introduce a revised standard operating procedure for the Short Stay Emergency Unit. 
�x Review the arrangements and environment for treating children in the Emergency Department 

to comply with national guidance for children’s emergency care. 
Surgery : 
�x Improve the time it takes to provide a written response to a complaint within 60 days. 
Critical Care:  
�x Raise the profile of the lead Occupational Therapist on the Unit. 
Spinal services:  
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�x Full implementation of the workforce plan. 
�x Monitor the pool environment for safety to ensure there is no risk of cross infection. 
�x Revise the process for reviewing, monitoring and taking action on the outcomes of data 

collection to meet any shortfalls in performance and care. 
 
 
Data quality  
 
Good quality information (data) underpins the effective delivery of patient care and is essential to 
drive improvements in the quality of care we deliver.  Having high data quality standards gives us 
confidence that decisions we make using the information are appropriate and ultimately will help 
us to deliver more responsive, high quality and cost effective services. 

With the Trust’s electronic patient record now embedded in practice, the Trust is embarking on a 
business intelligence project in 2019/2020 which includes replacing our data warehouse and 
delivering modern tools to support the improvement in data quality and the use of information 
more widely. We remain on a journey of continuous improvement around ensuring we adhere to 
standardised administrative practices when recording data. We will be further educating our staff 
in the role they play in meeting the high standards of data quality we aspire to and will introduce 
data quality champions across the Trust in 2019/2020. 

During 2018/2019 the Trust has improved internal processes around our submissions to the 
Secondary Uses Service (the national data source for the Hospital Episode Statistics (HES) which 
is used for many of the statistics provided about the NHS). This will ensure that we have 
consistent and comprehensive information used for both internal and external purposes. 

Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust submitted records during 2018/2019 to the Secondary Uses 
Service for inclusion in the Hospital Episode Statistics which are included in the latest published 
data.  The percentage of records in the published data which included the patient’s valid NHS 
number and valid 
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Secondary Diagnosis 94.5% 95.1% 97.2% 98.1% 97.5% 
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*Deaths with a Hogan score of: 1) Definitely not avoidable. ** Deaths with a Hogan score of: 2) Slight evidence for 
avoidability 3) Possibly avoidable, but not very likely, less than 50/50 *** Deaths with a Hogan score of: 4) Probably 
avoidable more than 50/50 5) Strong evidence of avoidability 6) Definitely avoidable.  
 
By 31 March 2019, 778 (97%) of deaths had been screened to ascertain whether each case 
required a case 
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The risk of death in 6 out of 7 high risk diagnosis groups remained within the expected range but 
septicaemia has started to show an upward trend over the last 4 data points (Figure 29). This 
remains a key focus for improvement with a monthly sepsis audit, feedback and education with 
ward based teams will continue to be reported to the Deteriorating Patient and Sepsis Steering 
Group.   

Figure 29: Trend in relative risk of death from septicaemia  

 

103 
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Seven day hospital services –  implementing the priority clinical standards  
The seven day services standards are designed to ensure patients that are admitted as an 
emergency receive high quality care whatever day they enter hospital.  In 2013 a Seven Day a 
Week Forum chaired by the National Medical Director, Sir Bruce Keogh was established to 
consider how services 
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Interventional endoscopy Yes Yes 
Interventional radiology Yes Yes 
Emergency renal replacement Yes Yes 
Urgent radiotherapy Yes Yes 

 
 
Figure 33: Standard 8:  Ongoing review  (standard  90%) 
 

Twice daily - April  2018  Weekday  Weekend  Total  
Number of patients  requiring twice daily 
reviews 23 6 29 

Number of patients  receiving a twice daily 
review 23 6 29 

% of patients receiving a twice daily review  

100% 

 
 

100% 

 

100% 

 
Once daily - April  2018  Weekday  Weekend  Total  
Number of patients  requiring once daily 
reviews 

343 107 
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�x Our executive director with responsibility for freedom to speak up – Director of Organisational 
Development and People in person, by telephone or email. 

�x Our Non-Executive Director in person, by telephone or email. 
 
Alternatively, if staff feel unable to speak up to someone in the Trust they can raise a concern 
outside the organisation with: 
�x NHS Improvement for concerns about how the Trust is 

run. www.england.nhs.uk/ourwork/whistleblowing/raising-a-concern/
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gaps have largely been filled by Trust Grade doctors and these have been successful in most 
areas as they have contributed additional capacity to rotas. 
 
The Trust implemented the Locums Nest booking system and app in 2017. This has enabled the 
Trust to increase the usage of locum doctors across specialities. Gaps that were not able to be 
filled with a Trust Grade doctor have benefited from using this to fill at risk shifts.  Since April 2018, 
the Trust has employed 84 doctors using this booking system. The average fill rate from Locums 
Nest has been 78% over the last 6 months of 2018/19. 
 
Sickness absence of doctors and dentists in training has declined in 2018/19.  The commonest 
reason for sickness absence is gastrointestinal problems. Stress related absence is low. 
 
Improvement actions taken or planned to be taken are: 

�¾ Continue to secure specialist doctors recruited from agencies to fill rota gaps. 
�¾ Prepare a recruitment plan in 2019/20 to recruit into areas where there is likely to be a shortfall 

of doctors in training. 
�¾ Develop a robust induction programme to support doctors from overseas transition into the 

NHS culture and working environment. 
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for males and 21.7 for females. For patients undergoing knee replacements on the Oxford 
Knee Score, these were 15.9 for males and 16.9 for females. Almost all hip replacement 
patients (96.4%) showed an improvement on their Oxford Hip Score. 93.5% showed 
improvement on the Oxford Knee Score.   

 
�x Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust PROMs finalised data from April 2016 to March 2017 of 

patients undergoing primary hip replacements reported average health gains on the Oxford Hip 
score as equal to the England average.  For patients who had a primary knee replacement the 
data showed average health gains and Oxford Knee Scores slightly above the England 
average.  

Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust will be taking the following actions: 

�x Continue to encourage patients to attend a ‘joint school’ before surgery to learn about hip and 
knee exercises needed after the operation and encourage them to continue them after they 
leave hospital to get the best outcome from the surgery. 

�x Continue to telephone patients who have had a hip or knee replacement who have been in 
hospital longer than 3 days to establish their progress and offer them an outpatient 
physiotherapy appointment if needed. 

 
Figure 35:  Patient Reported Outcome Measures (PROMs)  
 

NHS 
Outcomes 
Framework 

Domain  

Indicator  

 

 

2016/17** 

  

 

 

 

 

2017/18*** 

Indicative  

 

 

2018/2019 

 

 

National 
average 

April 1 8  – 
Sept 18 

 

 

Highest 
average 
other 
Trusts  

April 18 -
Sept 18 

 

Lowest 
average 

other 
Trusts  

April 18 -
Sept 18 

 

Domain 3: 
helping 

people to 
recover from 
episodes of 
ill health or 
following 

injury 

Patient reported outcome 
measures scores for: 

Average health gain where full health = 1 

i)  groin hernia surgery 0.095 
Not 

applicable 
From 1 October 2017  

NHSE no longer report this data 

ii)  varicose vein surgery 0.743 
Not 

applicable 
From 1 October 2017  

NHSE no longer report this data 
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�x Every time a patient is discharged and re-admitted to hospital staff code the episode of care.  
The Data Quality Service continually monitors data quality locally and from time to time it is 
subject to an external coding audit. 

�x A sample of patients who are re-admitted to hospital are validated by the Directorate 
Management Teams who compare the patient’s first admission primary diagnosis with the re-
admission primary diagnosis to establish whether they were linked.   

�x Emergency re-
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Responsiveness to the personal needs of patients  
 
Figure 37 presents the Trust’s performance on the responsiveness to the personal needs of 
patients. Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust considers that the mean score of responsiveness to in-
patient personal needs is as described for the following reasons: 
 
�x Each year the Trust participates in the National In-patient Survey. A nationally agreed 

questionnaire was sent to a random sample of 1250 patients and the results were analysed 
independently by the Patient Survey Co-ordination Centre.  57% of patients responded to the 
survey in 2018. 

�x Themes from the National In-patient Survey, real time feedback, the Friends and Family Test, 
complaints and concerns are identified by each ward and an improvement plan prepared. 

�x In 2018 we took part in the National Maternity Survey to collect feedback on women’s 
experiences of the maternity service to learn from and improve the quality of care. 
 

Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust has taken the following actions to improve responsiveness to in-
patient personal needs and improved the quality of its services by: 
�x Reducing noise at night – several wards have changed to soft close bins to reduce noise from 

banging lids.  Our Estates team have serviced squeaky doors and reduced noise. 
�x Developing our maternity care assistants and midwives to provide women with consistent 

advice on infant feeding – a prompt card with ‘must do’ information was given to all staff, an 
increased focus on breastfeeding at the annual compulsory study day, and clear 
documentation of advice given on the individualised care plan including care in the first hour. 

�x Improving discharge – Pembroke and Whiteparish wards starc 0 Td with 
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The Friends and Family Test –  Patients  

Figure 38 and 39 shows the Trust’s performance on patients who would recommend the Trust to 
family and friends. Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust considers the data collected from inpatients 
and patients discharged from the Emergency Department and wards who would recommend them 
if they needed similar care or treatment is as described for the following reasons: 
 
�x The Trust follows the Friends and Family Test national technical guidance published by NHS 

England to calculate the response rate and the percentage who would recommend the ward or 
the Emergency Department. The score measures the percentage of patients who were 
extremely likely or likely to recommend the hospital and the percentage of patients who were 
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In last year’s Quality Account *2017/18 data was only available to February 2018.  The full year is reported to March 
2018. 
 
 
Figure 39: Friends and Family test score of patients who would recomm end the ward or 
Emergency  Department  

NHS 
Outcomes 
Framework 

Domain  

Score : 
 

2016/17 
 

2017/18* 
 

2018/19 
 

National 
average  
2018/19   
(to M11) 

Highest 
other 
Trusts  
2018/19 
(to M11) 
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Clostridium difficile infection  
 
Figure 42 shows the Trust’s C difficile performance. Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust considers 
that the rate per 100,000 bed days of cases of C.difficile infection are as described for the 
following reason: 
 
�x The Trust complies with Department of Health guidance against which we report positive cases 

of C. difficile. We submit our data to Public Health England (PHE) and are compared nationally 
against other Trusts.   
 

Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust has taken the following actions in 2018/19 to reduce the rate per 
100,000 bed days of cases of C. difficile infection to improve the quality of its services by: 
 
�x Maintaining and monitoring good infection control practices including hand hygiene, wearing of 

personal protective equipment, prompt isolation nursing and sampling of patients with 
suspected C. difficile. 

�x Maintaining and monitoring standards of environmental and patient care equipment cleanliness 
and taking actions to improve. 

�x Improved best practice in antibiotic prescribing, a review by the third day of the course and 
monthly audits of practice. 

�x In-depth analysis of patients who develop C. difficile infection in hospital to share learning and 
improve patient care and experience.  
 

Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust intends to take the following actions in 2019/2020 to reduce the 
rate per 100,000 bed days of cases of C. difficile infection to improve the quality of its services by: 
 
�x Continued vigilance through the above actions 
�x Embed the use of the antibiotic review sticker to support doctors in best practice in antibiotic 

prescribing and review of antibiotics by day three to ensure an appropriate course. 
�x Ongoing monthly audits of antibiotic prescribing practice and improvement actions. 
 
Figure 42: Rate per 100,000 bed days of C difficile infection reported within the Trust 
amongst patients aged 2 or over  

NHS Outcomes Framework 
Domain  

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 
 

2018/19 
 

National 
average  
2018/19 

Highest 
average 

other 
Trusts  
2018/19 

Lowest 
average 

other Trusts  
2018/19 

Domain 5: treating and 
caring for people in a safe 
environment and protecting 
them from avoidable harm 

9.9 8.4 5.1 4.4 Not 
available 

 
Not 

available 

 
Not  

available 

Indicator : The rate per 100,000 bed days of C difficile infection reported within the Trust amongst patients aged 2 or 
over 
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Patient safety incidents 
 
Figure 43 shows the Trust’s performance on patient safety incidents. Salisbury NHS Foundation 
Trust considers that the rate of patient safety incidents reported and the number and percentage 
of such incidents that resulted in severe harm or death are as described for the following reasons: 
�x The Trust actively promotes an open and fair culture that encourages the honest and timely 

reporting of adverse events and near misses to ensure learning and improvement actions are 
taken. 

�x The Trust submits weekly patient safety incident data to the National Reporting Learning 
System.  

�x We work in partnership with our commissioners to share learning and improvement actions. 
�x The Trust reviews compliance with the Duty of Candour.  
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Part 3:  Other information  

Review of Quality Performance  

This section gives 
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NHS Improvement Single Oversight Framework 2018/19  

Indicators  

Figure 45:  Trust performance indicators  

Measure 2016/2017 2017/2018 2018/2019 
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Part 3: Annex 1  

Statement from Wiltshire Clinical Commissioning Group on Salisbury NHS Foundation 
Trust 201 8 - 2019 Quality Account  – 9 May 2019 

NHS Wiltshire Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) has reviewed Salisbury NHS Foundation 
Trusts’ (SFT) 2018-19 Quality Account.  In doing so, the CCG reviewed the Account in light of key 
intelligence indicators and the assurances sought and given in the bi-monthly Clinical Quality 
Review Meetings attended by SFT and Commissioners. This evidence is triangulated with 
information and further informed through Quality Assurance visits to SFT. The CCG supports the 
Trusts’ identified quality priorities for 2019-20. To the best of our knowledge, the report appears to 
be factually correct.  
 
It is the view of the CCG that the Quality Account reflects the Trusts’ on-going commitment to 
quality improvement and addressing key issues in a focused and innovative way, as well as 
utilising the nationally set CQUIN schemes to support the achievement of many of the 2018-19 
quality priorities. The Trust priorities for 2018-
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Overall, West Hampshire Clinical Commissioning Group is satisfied that the plans outlined in the 
Trust’s quality account will maintain and further improve the quality of services delivered to 
patients and the CCG looks forward to working closely with the Trust over the coming year to 
further improve the quality of Iocal health services. 
 

 
 
Heather Hauschild (Mrs)                                        
Chief Officer    
 
Statement from Wiltshire Council  - Health Select Committee  – 16 May 2019 
 
The Wiltshire Health Select Committee welcomes the opportunity to comment on the quality 
account. 
 
For ease of access for members of the public the committee would suggest that a simple 
executive summary is included with the quality accounts, which would offer an overview of the 
improvements achieved in the past year against the trust’s priorities for that year, as well as the 
areas requiring more work. Both would include numbers, i.e. showing the rate of improvement(s) 
achieved against the measures selected (something like the table used on page 11for patients 
seen by OPAL). The executive summary could also list the quality priorities identified by the trust 
for the year ahead and the proposed measurements.  
 
The committee noted the overall rating of good by the Care Quality Commission (CQC), although 
rated as “requiring improvement” for the “safe” inspection area, and the ambition of the trust to 
achieve an outstanding rating underpinned by its plan to take actions based on the CQC’s 26 
identified things for improvement (page 57). 
 
The committee wanted to highlight its appreciation of caring, humane and sensitive initiatives such 
as placing beside locker on the same side of the bed as the patient gets out of bed at home, the 
“call, don’t fall” posters, the fall checklist and sensor mats (page 13), taking part in the national 
#endpjparalysis campaign (page 23), and the efforts to reduce noise at night (page 71).  
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The committee would welcome an update from the trust within 6 to 9 months to inform the 
committee of: 

1. progress achieved to date for the five quality priorities identified by the trust for 2019/20, 
with particular interest in: 
a) Improving patient flow through the hospital, including measurements of the impact of the 

SAFER care bundle (Priority 3) and measurements of emergency re-admissions within 
28 days of discharge as this has been slightly increasing for patients aged 16 and over 
since 2016 (page 70); 

b) Increasing the number of patients who are able to de discharged to their preferred place 
of care at the end of their life, including working collaboratively with the community and 
social care partners to develop an older persons’ pathway (Priority 3); 

c) Organisational development strategy with regards to improving staff health and 
wellbeing; 

2. Progress on expanding parking provision for both staff and visitors. 
 
The committee would also welcome an update on the following areas from the priorities identified 
for 2018/19: 

- Continued efforts to reduce the number of patients who fall and injure themselves (page 
11); 

- Identify patients with delirium (page 11); 
- Ensure a rapid discharge for patients at the end of their life who wish to die at home (page 

11); 
- Outcome of the audit of the delirium care bundle (page 12); 
- Performance of the frailty pathway against the discharged within 72 hours measure (pages 

12 and 13); 
- Maintaining 90% standard of patients receiving hip fracture surgery within 36 hours (page 

15);  
- Monitoring of improvements (education and training) in understanding whether a patient 

meets the eligibility criteria for fast track Continuing Health Care funding (page 16) (NB - 
Please note this is of particular interest);  

- Navigator performance with regards to patients being seen within 15 minutes of arrival in 
the emergency department, as well as any additional development of skills offered to 
navigators; 

- Trusted assessors, development of the concept and impact on speeding up discharges 
(page 24) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 180  
 

 

Statement from Healthwatch , Wiltshire – 10 May 2019 

Healthwatch Wiltshire thanks the Trust for sharing its Quality Account and welcomes the 
opportunity to comment. �+�H�D�O�W�K�Z�D�W�F�K�� �:�L�O�W�V�K�L�U�H�×�L�V�� �D�Q�� �L�Q�G�H�S�H�Q�G�H�Q�W�� �R�U�J�D�Q�L�V�D�W�L�R�Q�� �W�K�D�W�×�S�U�R�P�R�W�H�V�×�W�K�H��
�Y�R�L�F�H���R�I���S�D�W�L�H�Q�W�V���D�Q�G���W�K�H���Z�L�G�H�U���S�X�E�O�L�F���Z�L�W�K���U�H�V�S�H�F�W���W�R���K�H�D�O�W�K���D�Q�G���V�R�F�L�D�O���F�D�U�H���V�H�U�Y�L�F�H�V���×�×�×  

Healthwatch Wiltshire is pleased to see the summary of priorities on the first pages alongside the 
use of infographics which displays the information, is an easy to understand and accessible way. 
We would recommend that you consider using this approach more throughout the report.  We 
found some of the graphs are confusing and difficult to understand, with similar colours used 
making it difficult to differentiate.    

We are pleased to see the effectiveness of the Older People’s Liaison Team has increased and 
we would be keen for this trend to continue. We also commend the creation of the Older People 
and Frailty Steering Group which involves community partners in the design of this pathway. We 
would be interested to hear how patient feedback is also incorporated at this design stage.  

Healthwatch Wiltshire applauds the work carried out to reduce the number of falls resulting in 
patients fracturing their hip. However, we note that the number of falls resulting in other fractures, 
major or moderate harm had increased. We recognise that a review has taken place and are 
pleased to see this is a continued priority for the forthcoming year.  

We are often told that people at End of life would prefer to die at home and so are saddened to 
see that the number of patients discharged to their preferred place of care has decreased. We are 
pleased that this has been noted and looked at in detail so that improvements can be made. We 
are also pleased that training for Continuing Health Care is planned. We would be keen to follow 
this going forwards.  
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We recognise that staff wellbeing will have a direct impact on patient care and welcome this as a 
priority area. We are pleased to see that some work has started in this area and that it will 
continue to be a priority for the next year.  

Healthwatch Wiltshire applauds the overall Care Quality Commission (CQC) rating of good and 
are pleased that several areas were noted as demonstrating outstanding practice. We look 
forward to hearing more about improvements planned in line with CQC recommendations.  

We are pleased that you gather feedback from patients following the standard friends and family 
test and are pleased to see actions in place to improve the response rate. We would be happy to 
support you with this process. Healthwatch Wiltshire are also disappointed to see that patient 
experience figures from the national inpatient survey around being treated with respect and 
dignity, quality of care, cleanliness and support from staff at mealtimes have decreased and we 
would be interested to hear about plans in place to improve these figures and how they compare 
nationally.  

Statement  from the Governors  – 1 May 2019 

The headline event from the care point of view was the Care Quality Commission’s assessment of 
the Trust overall as “good” rather than “requires improvement” which had been the disappointing 
conclusion in 2016. This was achieved at a time when the Trust, like the NHS as a whole, was 
facing huge difficulties. So it says a lot for the Trust’s resilience and the dedication of its staff.  

The Quality Account looks at the past year, in particular at the areas where the Trust had taken 
specific steps to make improvements. It considers how far there has been success and what 
further may need to be done. It is critical rather than complacent. The Quality Account takes a 
similar approach to the current year, 2019/20. It is an attitude which runs through the Trust from 
the Board down. It is something which has built the high reputation in which the Governors believe 
the hospital is held. 

A priority for 2018/9 was to improve the health and well-being of staff. It is carried forward as a 
priority for the current year. The Quality Account refers to the impact this can have on the quality 
of care which is provided. Another way of looking at it is to say that it is something the staff 
deserve. It is of particular importance. 

How to provide feedback  

All feedback is welcomed, the Trust listens to these concerns and steps are taken to address 
individual issues at the time.  Comments are also used to improve services and directly influence 
projects and initiatives being put in place by the Trust. 
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�x feedback from governors dated 1 May 2019; 

�x feedback from Healthwatch Wiltshire dated 10 May 2019;  

�x feedback from Wiltshire Council Overview and Scrutiny Committee dated 16 May 2019; 

�x the Trust’s complaints report published under regulation 18 of the Local Authority, Social 
Services and National Health Service Complaints (England) Regulations 2009, dated 12 April 
2018, 2 August 2018, 4 October 2018, and 7 February 2019. 

�x the national staff survey dated February 2019;  

�x the Head of Internal Audit’s annual opinion over the Trust’s control environment dated May 
2019; and 

�x the Care Quality Commission’s inspection report dated 1 February 2019. 

We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or 
material inconsistencies with these documents (collectively the “documents”). Our responsibilities 
do not extend to any other information.  
 
The firm applies International Standard on Quality Control 1 (Revised) and accordingly maintains a 
comprehensive system of quality control including documented policies and procedures regarding 
compliance with ethical requirements, professional standards and applicable legal and regulatory 
requirements. 
 
We are in compliance with the applicable independence and competency requirements of the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales (ICAEW) Code of Ethics. Our team 
comprised assurance practitioners and relevant subject matter experts. 
 
This report, including the conclusion, has been prepared solely for the Council of Governors of 
Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust as a body, to assist the Council of Governors in reporting NHS 
Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust’s quality agenda, performance and activities. We permit the 
disclosure of this report within the Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2019, to enable the 
Council of Governors to demonstrate they have discharged their governance responsibilities by 
commissioning an independent assurance report in connection with the indicators. To the fullest 
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Grant Thornton UK LLP  
Chartered Accountants 
Bristol   
Date: 24 May 2019 
The Annual Report has been approved by the Trust Board on 23 May 2019.   
 
 

 
 
Cara Charles- Barks 
Chief Executive  
23 May 2019 
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FOREWORD TO THE ACCOUNTS

These consolidated accounts for the year ended 31 March 2019 have been prepared by Salisbury NHS
Foundation Trust in accordance with paragraphs 24 and 25 of Schedule 7 to the National Health Service Act
2006.

Signed: 

Date:  23 May 2019

Cara Charles-Barks - Chief Executive
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31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2019 2018 2019 2018

Note £000 £000 £000 £000
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Intangible assets 16 8,390 9,899 8,390 9,899
Property, plant and equipment 17 142,250 136,417 135,408 129,744
Investments in subsidiaries 33 -  -  5 5
Investments in joint ventures 34 103 250 103 250
Investments 18 7,059 6,779 -  -  
Other financial assets 19 2,204 2,123 3,340 3,721
Total non-current assets 160,006 155,468 147,246 143,619

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories 20 6,770 6,214 4,840 4,807
Trade and other receivables 21 23,555 14,726 22,761 14,063
Investments 18 201 44 -  -  
Other financial assets 19 -  -  962 462
Non-current assets held for sale 22 -  570 -  570
Cash and cash equivalents 23 12,516 10,370 7,476 7,780
Total current assets 43,042 31,924 36,039 27,682

Total assets 203,048 187,392 183,285 171,301

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 24 (24,929) (24,457) (23,439) (23,269)
Borrowings 25 (1,695) (1,164) (1,695) (1,164)
Provisions 26 (713) (292) (713) (292)



Public Income and Revaluation Minorit y NHS Total
dividend expenditure reserv e interest Charitable taxpayers'

capital reserv e Funds equit y
(PDC) reserv e

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Taxpayers' and Others' Equity at 1 April 201 7 54,046 16,005 56,238 46 12,684 139,019

Changes in taxpayers' equity for 2017/1 8
Retained surplus/(deficit) for the year -  (13,390) -  (11) 1,479 (11,922)
Other recognised gains and losses -  -  -  -  -  -  
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of property plant and 
equipment -  -  (1,411) -  -  (1,411)
Transfers between reserves -  -  -  -  -  -  
Revaluations and impairments - charitable fund 
assets -  -  -  -  327 327
Fair Value gains/(losses) on Available-for-sale 
financial investments -  -  -  -  (71) (71)
Other reserve movements -  353 -  -  (353) -  
Public dividend capital received in year 1,911 -  -  -  -  1,911

Balance at 31 March 201 8 55,957 2,968 54,827 35 14,066 127,853

Changes in taxpayers' equity for 2018/1 9
Retained surplus/(deficit) for the year -  (4,212) -  7 2,845 (1,360)
Other recognised gains and losses -  -  -  -  -  -  
Impairment of property plant and equipment -  -  -  -  -  -  
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of property plant and 
equipment -  -  4,214 -  -  4,214
Transfers between reserves -  -  -  -  -  -  
Revaluations and impairments - charitable fund 
assets -  -  -  -  492 492
Fair Value gains/(losses) on Available-for-sale 
financial investments -  -  -  -  -  -  
Other reserve movements -  204 -  -  (204) -  
Public dividend capital received in year 1,340 -  -  -  -  1,340

Balance at 31 March 201 9 57,297 (1,040) 59,041 42 17,199 132,539

The notes on pages 5 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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2019 2018 2019 2018
Note £000 £000 £000 £000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Total operating surplus/ (deficit) 4,162 (6,819) 1,714 (7,959)

NON-CASH INCOME AND EXPENSE
Depreciation and amortisation charge 7 9,531 9,066 9,074 8,625
Impairments 7 1,203 1,365 1,203 1,365
Non-cash donations credited to income (207) (352) (207) (352)
(Increase)/ decrease in trade and other receivables 21 (9,042) 256 (8,952) 571
(Increase)/ decrease in inventories 20 (556) (1,264) (33) (842)
Increase/ (decrease) in trade and other payables 24 727 2,840 531 2,231
Increase/ (decrease) in provisions 26 375 (45) 375 (45)
NHS charitable funds - net adjustments for working capital movements, non-
cash transactions and non-operating cash flows 57 264 -  -  

Net cash inflow from operating activitie s 6,250 5,311 3,705 3,594

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received 54 24 117 76
Payments to acquire property, plant and equipment 17 (7,432) (4,489) (7,307) (4,439)
Receipts from sale of property, plant and equipment 466 -  466 -  
Payments to acquire intangible assets 16 (923) (4,769) (923) (4,769)sTD
(Net cash ins and non-operating cash flows)Tj



1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

NHS Improvement, in exercising the statutory functions conferred on Monitor, has directed that the financial
statements of the Trust shall meet the accounting requirements of the Department of Health and Social Care Group
Accounting Manual (GAM), which shall be agreed with HM Treasury. Consequently, the following financial statements



1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.3 Critical accounting estimates and judgements (Continued)

The value of land, buildings and dwellings is £115.8 million (2018: £111.7m): This is the most significant estimate in
the accounts and is based on the professional judgements of the Trust and Charity's independent valuers with
extensive knowledge of the physical estate and market factors. The value does not take into account potential future
changes in market value which cannot be predicted with any certainty.

Depreciation of buildings and dwellings is based on the estimated ecomonic lives of those assets as determined by 
professional valuers. Depreciation of all other property, plant and equipment together with the amortisation of 
intangibles assets is based on the Trust's judgement of the remaining useful ecominic lives of the assets. The lives 
used for amortisation and depreciation purposes are disclosed in note 1.8 and 1.9 respectively.

1.4 Basis of Consolidation

1.4.1 NHS Charitable Fund
The Trust is the corporate trustee to Salisbury District Hospital Charitable Fund. The Trust has assessed its
relationship to the charitable fund and determined it to be a subsidiary because the Foundation Trust is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns and other benefits for itself, patients and staff from its involvement with the charitable
fund and has the ability to affect those returns and other benefits through its power over the fund.

The consolidation is for reporting purposes only and does not affect the charity's legal and regulatory independence
and day to day operations.

The charitable fund’s statutory accounts are prepared to 31 March in accordance with the UK Charities Statement of
Recommended Practice (SORP) which is based on UK Financial Reporting Standard (FRS) 102. On consolidation,
necessary adjustments are made to the charity’s assets, liabilities and transactions to:

�x         recognise and measure them in accordance with the Trust's accounting policies; and
�x         eliminate intra-group transactions, balances, gains and losses.

Charitable donations and assets are maintained and administered separately and distinctly from those of the Trust by



1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.4 Basis of Consolidation (continued )

Unless otherwise stated the notes to the accounts refer to the Group and not the Trust. Where the Trust's balances
are materially different, these are stated separately.

1.4.3 Associate s
Associate entities are those over which the Trust has the power to exercise a significant influence. Associate entities
are recognised in the Trust's financial statement using the equity method. The investment is initially recognised at cost.
It is increased or decreased subsequently to reflect the Trust's share of the entity's profit or loss or other gains and
losses (e.g. revaluation gains on the entity's property, plant and equipment) following acquisition. It is also reduced
when any distribution (e.g. share dividends) are received by the Trust from the associate.

1.4.4 Joint ventures



1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.5 Income Reco gnition (continued )

Where the Trust is aware of a penalty based on contractual performance, the Trust reflects this in the transaction price
for its recognition of revenue. Revenue is reduced by the value of the penalty

The Trust does not receive income where a patient is readmitted within 30 days of discharge from a previous planned
stay. This is considered an additional performance obligation to be satisfied under the original transaction price. An
estimate of readmissions is made at the year end, this portion of revenue is deferred as a contract liability.

The Trust receives income from commissioners under Commissioning for Quality and Innovation (CQUIN) schemes.
The Trust agrees schemes with its commissioner, which improve how care is provided to patients. That is, the CQUIN
payments are not considered distinct performance obligations in their own right; instead they form part of the
transaction price for performance obligations under the contract.

Revenue from research contract s
Where research contracts fall under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised as and when performance obligations are
satisfied. For some contracts, it is assessed that the revenue project constitutes one performance obligation over the
course of the multi-year contract. In these cases it is assessed that the Trust’s interim performance does not create an
asset with alternative use for the Trust, and the Trust has an enforceable right to payment for the performance
completed to date. It is therefore considered that the performance obligation is satisfied over time, and the Trust
recognises revenue each year over the course of the contract.

NHS in jury cost recover y schem e
The Trust receives income under the NHS injury cost recovery scheme, designed to reclaim the cost of treating injured
individuals to whom personal injury compensation has subsequently been paid, for instance by an insurer. The Trust
recognises the income when it receives notification from the Department for Work and Pension's Compensation
Recovery Unit, has completed the NHS2 form and confirmed there are no discrepancies with the treatment. The
income is measured at the agreed tariff for the treatments provided to the injured individual, less an allowance for



1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.5.3 Other income

Income from the sale of non-current assets is recognised only when all material conditions of sale have been met, and
is measured as the sums due under the sale contract.

Charitable incoming resources are recognised once the charity has entitlement to the resources, it is certain that the
resources will be received and the monetary value of the incoming resources can be measured with sufficient
reliability.

Legacy income is accounted for within the charity as incoming resources, either upon receipt, or where the receipt of
the legacy is probable; this will be once confirmation has been received from the representatives of the estate(s) that
payment of the legacy will be made, or property transferred, and once all conditions attached to the legacy have been
fulfilled.

1.6 Expenditure on employee benefits

1.6.1 Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, wages and employment-related payments such as social security costs and the apprenticeship levy are
recognised in the period in which the service is received from employees. The cost of annual leave entitlement earned
but not taken by employees at the end of the period is recognised in the financial statements to the extent that
employees are permitted to carry-forward leave into the following period.

1.6.2 Pension costs

NHS Pension Schem e





1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.9 Property, plant and e quipment

1.9.1 Recognition
Property, plant and equipment is capitalised where:

�” it is held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes;
�” it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential will be supplied to, the Trust;
�” it is expected to be used for more than one financial year;
�” the cost of the item can be measured reliably; and
�” the item has cost of at least £5,000; or
�” collectively, a number of items have a cost of at least £5,000 and individually have a cost of more than £250, 
where the assets are functionally interdependent, had broadly simultaneous purchase dates, are anticipated to 
have simultaneous disposal dates and are under single managerial control; or
�” items form part of the initial equipping and setting-up cost of a new building, ward or unit, irrespective of their 
individual or collective cost.

Where a large asset, for example a building, includes a number of components with significantly different asset lives,
eg, plant and equipment, then these components are treated as separate assets and depreciated over their own useful
lives.

1.9.2 Measuremen t

Valuation
All property, plant and equipment assets are measured initially at cost, representhei90icipat 0 TDcosts directly attributable to





1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.9

Following reclassification, the assets are measured at the lower of their existing carrying amount and their 'fair value
less costs to sell'. Depreciation ceases to be charged and the assets are not revalued, except where the 'fair value
less costs to sell' falls below the carrying amount. Assets are derecognised when all material sale contract conditions
have been met. Fair value is opening market value including alternative uses.

The profit or loss arising on disposal of an asset is the difference between the sale proceeds, less costs associated
with the sale, and the carrying amount and is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. On disposal,
the balance for the asset on the revaluation reserve is transferred to retained earnings. 

Property, plant and equipment which is to be scrapped or demolished does not qualify for recognition as 'held for sale'



1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.9

The element of the annual unitary payment that is allocated as a finance lease rental is applied to meet the annual
finance cost and to repay the lease liability over the contract term. 

An element of the annual unitary payment increase due to cumulative indexation is allocated to the finance lease. In
accordance with IAS 17, this amount is not included in the minimum lease payments, but is instead treated as
contingent rent and is expensed as incurred. In substance, this amount is a finance cost in respect of the liability and
the expense is presented as a contingent finance cost in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Lifecycle replacemen t
Components of the asset replaced by the operator during the contract (‘lifecycle replacement’) are capitalised where
they meet the Trust’s criteria for capital expenditure. They are capitalised at the time they are provided by the operator
and are measured initially at their fair value.

The element of the annual unitary payment allocated to lifecycle replacement is pre-determined for each year of the
contract from the operator’s planned programme of lifecycle replacement. Where the lifecycle component is provided
earlier or later than expected, a short-term finance lease liability or prepayment is recognised respectively. 

Where the fair value of the lifecycle component is less than the amount determined in the contract, the difference is
recognised as an expense when the replacement is provided. If the fair value is greater than the amount determined in
the contract, the difference is treated as a ‘free’ asset and a deferred income balance is recognised. The deferred
income is released to the operating income over the shorter of the remaining contract period or the useful economic life
of the replacement component.

Assets contributed b y the Trust to the o perator for use in the scheme
Assets contributed for use in the scheme continue to be recognised as items of property, plant and equipment in the
Trust’s Statement of Financial Position.

Other assets contributed b y the Trust to the o perator
Assets contributed (e.g. cash payments, surplus property) by the Trust to the operator before the asset is brought into
use, which are intended to defray the operator’s capital costs, are recognised initially as prepayments during the
construction phase of the contract. Subsequently, when the asset is made available to the Trust, the prepayment is
treated as an initial payment towards the finance lease liability and is set against the carrying value of the liability.

1.10 Investments

Investments in subsidiary undertakings, associates and joint ventures are treated as fixed asset investments and
stated at cost.

Deposits and other investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash at or close to their carrying
amounts are treated as liquid resources in the cash flow statement. 

Investments in quoted stocks, shares, gilts and alternative investments are included in the Statement of Financial
Position at mid-market price, ex-dividend.

All gains and losses are taken to the Statement of Comprehensive Income as they arise. Realised gains and losses on
investments are calculated as the difference between sales proceeds and opening market value (or purchase date if
later). Unrealised gains and losses are calculated as the difference between the market value at the year end and
opening market value (or value at purchase date if later).

1.11 Borrowin g costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as expenses as they are incurred.
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.12 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is measured on the First
In, First Out (FIFO) method. Work-in-progress comprises goods in intermediate stages of production. The Laundry
stock value is based on the original cost less an adjustment to reflect usage, over a three year life (except for Towels
and Scrub Suits which have a two year life), in determining an approximation of net realisable value.

1.13 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24
hours. Cash equivalents are investments that mature in 3 months or less from the date of acquisition and that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.  

In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Trust’s cash management. Cash, bank and overdraft balances are recorded at
current values.

1.14 Financial assets and financial liabilities

1.14.1 Recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities arise where the Trust is party to the contractual provisions of a financial
instrument, and as a result has a legal right to receive or a legal obligation to pay cash or another financial instrument.
The GAM expands the definition of a contract to include legislation and regulations which give rise to arrangements
that in all other respects would be a financial instrument and do not give rise to transactions classified as a tax by 

This includes the purchase or sale of non-financial items (such as goods or services), which are entered into in
accordance with the Trust’s normal purchase, sale or usage requirements and are recognised when, and to the extent
which, performance occurs, ie, when receipt or delivery of the goods or services is made.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value plus or minus directly attributable transaction
costs except where the asset or liability is not measured at fair value through income and expenditure. Fair value is
taken as the transaction price, or otherwise determined by reference to quoted market prices or valuation techniques.

Financial assets or financial liabilities in respect of assets acquired or disposed of through finance leases are
recognised and measured in accordance with the accounting policy for leases described below.

Financial assets are classified as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through income and
expenditure or fair value through other comprehensive income.

Financial liabilities classified as subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value through income and
expenditure. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost are those held with the objective of collecting contractual
cash flows and where cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest. This includes cash equivalents, contract
and other receivables, trade and other payables, rights and obligations under lease arrangements and loans receivable
and payable.

After initial recognition, these financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less any impairment (for financial assets). The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability.

Interest revenue or expense is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset or amortised cost of a financial liability and recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and
a financing income or expense. In the case of loans held from the Department of Health and Social Care, the effective
interest rate is the nominal rate of interest charged on the loan. 
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.15 Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

1.15.1 The Trust as lessee 

Finance leases
Where substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of a leased asset are borne by the Trust, the asset is
recorded as property, plant and equipment and a corresponding liability is recorded. The value at which both are
recognised is the lower of the fair value of the asset or the present value of the minimum lease payments,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. 

The asset and liability are recognised at the commencement of the lease. Thereafter the asset is accounted for
as an item of property, plant and equipment.

The annual rental charge is split between the repayment of the liability and a finance cost so as to achieve a
constant rate of finance over the life of the lease. The annual finance cost is charged to Finance Costs in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income. The lease liability, is de-recognised when the liability is discharged,
cancelled or expires.

Operatin g leases
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease
incentives are recognised initially as a liability and subsequently as a reduction of rentals on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land component is separated from the building component and the
classification for each is assessed separately. 

1.15.2 The Trust as lesso r

Finance lease s
Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the amount of the Trust’s net
investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods to reflect a constant periodic
rate of return on the Trust’s net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Operatin g leases
Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

1.16 Provisions

The Trust recognises a provision where it has a present legal or constructive obligation of uncertain timing or
amount; for which it is probable that there will be a future outflow of cash or other resources; and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount. The amount recognised in the Statement of Financial Position is the best
estimate of the resources required to settle the obligation. Where the effect of the time value of money is
significant, the estimated risk-adjusted cash flows are discounted using the discount rates published and
mandated by HM Treasury.  
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.16 Provisions (Continued

Early retirement provisions are discounted using HM Treasury's pension discount rate of 0.1% (2017-18: 0.24%)
in real terms. 

Clinical ne gligence costs
NHS Resolution operates a risk pooling scheme under which the Trust pays an annual contribution to NHS
Resolution, which, in return, settles all clinical negligence claims. Although NHS Resolution is administratively
responsible for all clinical negligence cases, the legal liability remains with the Trust. The total value of clinical
negligence provisions carried by NHS Resolution on behalf of the Trust is disclosed at note 26 but is not
recognised in the Trust’s accounts. 

Non-clinical risk poolin g
The Trust participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to Third Parties Scheme. Both are
risk pooling schemes under which the Trust pays an annual contribution to NHS Resolution and in return
receives assistance with the costs of claims arising. The annual membership contributions, and any “excesses”
payable in respect of particular claims are charged to operating expenses when the liability arises. 

1.17 Contingencies

Contingent assets (that is, assets arising from past events whose existence will only be confirmed by one or
more future events not wholly within the entity’s control) are not recognised as assets, but are disclosed where
an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised unless the probability of a transfer of economic benefits is remote. 

Contingent liabilities are defined as:
• possible obligations arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence of 
one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the entity’s control; or
• present obligations arising from past events but for which it is not probable that a transfer of economic 
benefits will arise or for which the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

1.18 Public dividend capital

At any time, the Secretary of State can issue new PDC to, and require repayments of PDC from, the Trust. PDC
is recorded at the value received.

A charge, reflecting the cost of capital utilised by the Trust, is payable as public dividend capital dividend. The
charge is calculated at the rate set by HM Treasury (currently 3.5%) on the average relevant net assets of the





1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.24 Gifts

1.25

1.26

IFRS 16 Leases Application required for accounting periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2019, but deferred until 2020-2021.

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts Application required for accounting periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2021 but not yet adopted by the FREM: early 
adoption is therefore not permitted.

IFRIC 22 Foreign currency transactions and 
advance consideration

Application required for accounting periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2018.

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over income tax treatments Application required for accounting periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2019.

2. Segmental Analysi s

Group and Trust

The business activities of the Group can be summarised as that of 'healthcare'. The Trust's activities comprise five



3 Revenue From Patient Care Activitie s

3.1 Revenue by Typ e
Restated

2019 2018
£000 £000

Elective revenue 34,676 32,294
Non-elective revenue 56,688 54,586
Outpatient revenue 31,018 26,026
A & E revenue 6,813 6,219
High cost drugs income from commissioners 15,365 16,775
Other types of activity revenue 54,512 52,551
Total revenue at full tarif f 199,072 188,451
Private patient revenue 2,390 2,164
Agenda for Change pay award central funding from DHSC 2,571 -  
Other clinical income 6,642 4,555
Total income from patient care activities 210,675 195,170

3.2 Revenue by Sourc e 2019 2018
£000 £000

NHS England 42,952 41,826
Clinical commissioning groups 152,636 143,557
Department of Health and Social Care 2,586 -  
Other NHS providers 3,881 3,691
NHS other 263 295
Local authorities 1,691 1,417
Non NHS:
      - Private patients 2,390 2,164
      - Overseas patients (chargeable to patient) 92 58
      - NHS Injury cost rcovery scheme 990 1,412
      - Other 3,194 750

210,675 195,170

3.3 Commissioner requested services

2019 2018
£000 £000

Commissioner requested services 189,165 178,621
Non-commissioner requested services 21,510 16,549

210,675 195,170

Under the terms of its provider licence, the trust is required to analyse the level of income from activities that
has arisen from commissioner requested and non-commissioner requested services. Commissioner



4. Private patient revenu e

5. Other operating revenu e

2019 2018 2019 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000

Provider sustainability/ sustainability and transformation fund income (PSF/ S 5,355 -  5,355 -  
Research and development 1,031 1,067 1,031 1,067
Education and training 7,704 6,577 7,704 6,577
Non-patient care services to other bodies 1,682 1,444 1,682 1,444
Received from NHS charities - donated assets -  -  207 352
Salisbury Trading Limited 7,165 4,801 -  -  
NHS Charitable Funds: Incoming Resources excluding investment income 3,860 2,767 -  -  
Odstock Medical Limited 2,070 1,877 -  -  
Accommodation 1,459 1,411 1,459 1,411
Car Parking 1,768 1,590 1,768 1,590
Catering 1,043 956 1,043 956
Other 4,198 3,721 4,849 4,355

37,335 26,211 25,098 17,752

6.

6.1 As lesso r

6.2 Receipts recognised as income

2019 2018 2019 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000

Rental revenue from operating leases - minimum lease receipts 194 191 596 581

6.3 Total future minimum lease income

2019 2018 2019 2018
Receivable: £000 £000 £000 £000

Within 1 year 38 114 190 353
Between 1 and 5 years 12 42 12 42

Total 50 156 202 395

Group Trust

The Trust has entered into short term commercial leases on buildings, which primarily relate to the rental of an area within the
hospital main entrance to a high street retailer and properties rented to subsidiary companies.
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9. Staff costs and numbers

9.1 Staff costs

Group Total Other Total
Permanently 

Employed Other
2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Salaries and wages 118,749 118,749 -  110,258 110,258 -  
Social Security Costs 10,626 10,626 -  9,899 9,899 -  
Apprenticeship levy 573 573 -  543 543 -  
Employer contributions to NHSPA 13,866 13,866 -  13,034 13,034 -  
Other pension costs 20 20 -  8 8 -  
Agency and contract staff 8,431 -  8,431 8,883 -  8,883

                              
152,265 143,834 8,431 142,625 133,742 8,883

Less: costs of staff capitalised (527) (527) -  (1,856) (1,856) -  

               151,738 143,307 8,431 140,769 131,886 8,883

Trust Total Other Total
Permanently 

Employed Other
2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Salaries and wages 114,563 114,563 -  106,956 106,956 -  
Social Security Costs 10,626 10,626 -  9,899 9,899 -  
Apprenticeship levy 573 573 529 529
Employer contributions to NHSPA 13,822 13,822 -  13,034 13,034 -  
Other pension costs 18 18 -  8 8 -  
Agency and contract staff 6,970 -  6,970 8,051 -  8,051

                              
146,572 139,602 6,970 138,477 130,426 8,051

Less: costs of staff capitalised (527) (527) -  (1,856) (1,856) -  

               146,045 139,075 6,970 136,621 128,570 8,051

9.2 Average number of persons employed - WTE basis
Restated Restated

Group Total Other Total
Permanently 

Employed Other
2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018

Number Number Number



9. Staff costs and numbers (continued)

9.3 Directors' remuneration

2019 2018
£000 £000

Salaries and wages 930 913
Social Security Costs 113 110
Employer contributions to Pension Schemes 109 98

1,152 1,121

9.4 Staff departure costs

Group and Trust

2019 2019 2018 2018

Exit package cost band
< £10,000 1 1 1 -  
£10,001 - £25,000 -  2 1 -  
Total number of exit packages by type 1 3 2 -  

£000 £000 £000 £000
Total resource costs 3 34 22 -  

There were no non-compulsary departure payments (2018: nil).

10 Pension costs

10.1 NHS Pension Schemes

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

The total number of Directors accruing benefits under pension schemes is 6 (2018: 6). The Directors Remuneration only
relates to the Group.

The total cost charged to income in respect of the Group's obligations to the NHS Pension Agency and the defined
contribution schemes for Odstock Medical Limited and Salisbury Trading Limited was £13.86m (2018: £13.12m). As at
31 March 2019, contributions of £1.96m (2018: £1.83m) due in respect of the current reporting period (representing the
contributions for the final month of the year) had not been paid over to the schemes by the balance sheet date.

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the two NHS Pension Schemes. Details of the benefits
payable and rules of the Schemes can be found on the NHS Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions. Both
are unfunded defined benefit schemes that cover NHS employers, GP practices and other bodies, allowed under the
direction of the Secretary of State for Health in England and Wales. They are not designed to be run in a way that would
enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, each scheme is
accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the NHS body of participating in each scheme is
taken as equal to the contributions payable to that scheme for the accounting period.  

Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust - Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2019

There were no compulsory redundancy costs relating to senior managers in the year.

No. of other 
agreed 

departures

No. of 
compulsory 

redundancies

No. of other 
agreed 

departures

Group and Trust

No. of 
compulsory 

redundancies
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12. Finance income

2019 2018 2019 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000

Interest received 346 316 135 147
Other loans and receivables -  -  63 52

346 316 198 199

13. Finance costs

Group and Trust

2019 2018
£000



16. Intangible Asset s

16.1 Intangible assets at the balance sheet date comprise the following elements :

Group and Trust

Software 
Licences Total

£000 £000 £000 

Cost or valuation 
At 1 April 2018 2,364 11,527 13,891
Additions - purchased 923 -  923
Additions - donated -  25 25
Impairments charged to operating expenses (123) (85) (208)
Reclassifications (2,963) 2,963 -  
Disposals -  (306) (306)
At 31 March 201 9 201 14,124 14,325

Amortisation 
At 1 April 2018 -  3,992 3,992
Provided during the period -  2,261 2,261
Impairments charged to operating expenses -  (12) (12)
Disposals -  (306) (306)
Amortisation at 31 March 201 9 -  5,935 5,935

Net book value at 31 March 201 9
   - Purchased at 31 March 2019 201 8,164 8,365
   - Donated at 31 March 2019 -  25 25
Total at 31 March 201 9 201 8,189 8,390

Cost or valuation 
At 1 April 2017 1,094 9,489 10,583
Additions - purchased 4,769 -  4,769
Additions - donated -  25 25
Impairments charged to operating expenses (197) (1,289) (1,486)
Reclassifications (3,302) 3,302 -  
At 31 March 201 8 2,364 11,527 13,891

Amortisation 
At 1 April 2017 -  2,817 2,817
Provided during the period -  1,809 1,809
Impairments charged to operating expenses -  (634) (634)
Amortisation at 31 March 201 8 -  3,992 3,992

Net book value at 31 March 201 8
   - Purchased at 31 March 2018 2,364 7,516 9,880
   - Donated at 31 March 2018 -  19 19
Total at 31 March 201 8 2,364 7,535 9,899

Assets under 
Construction

Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust - Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2019

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
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17. Property, plant and equipment

Group

17.1 Property, Plant and equipment at the balance sheet date comprise the following elements:

 Freehold 
land

Freehold 
buildings 
excluding 
dwellings

Freehold 
dwellings 

Assets under 
construction 

and payments 
on account

Plant & 
machinery 

Transport 
equipment 

Information 
technology 

Furniture & 
fittings 

Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
Cost or valuation 
At 1 April 2018 1,155 102,048 8,486 1,281 66,057 361 19,798 3,661 202,847
Additions - purchased -  -  -  8,995 134 -  -  -  9,129
Additions - donated -  7 -  -  132 -  6 37 182
Impairments -  -  -  (903) -  -  -  -  (903)
Reclassifications -  1,537 -  (9,235) 3,436 -  4,191 71 -  
Revaluation 15 2,567 34 -  -  -  -  -  2,616
Transfer to assets held for sale -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  
Disposals -  (38) -  -  (923) -  (11,658) -  (12,619)
At 31 March 2019 1,170 106,121 8,520 138 68,836 361 12,337 3,769 201,252

Accumulated depreciation 
At 1 April 2018 -  38 -  -  47,064 311 17,158 1,859 66,430
Provided during the period -  1,921 169 -  3,890 9 968 313 7,270
Revaluation -  (1,921) (169) -  -  -  -  -  (2,090)
Impairments -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  
Disposals -  (38) -  -  (912) -  (11,658) -  (12,608)





17. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Trust

17.3 Property, Plant and equipment at the balance sheet date comprise the following elements:

 Freehold 
land

Freehold 
buildings 
excluding 
dwellings

Freehold 
dwellings 

Assets under 
construction 

and payments 
on account

Plant & 
machinery 

Transport 
equipment 

Information 
technology 

Furniture & 
fittings 

Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
Cost or valuation 
At 1 April 2018 390 98,047 7,581 1,281 62,064 339 19,798 3,661 193,161
Additions - purchased -  -  -  8,995 -  -  -  -  8,995
Additions - donated -  7 -  -  132 -  6 37 182
Impairments -  -  -  (903) -  -  -  -  (903)
Reclassifications -  1,537 -  (9,235) 3,436 -  4,191 71 -  
Revaluation -  2,359 (26) -  -  -  -  -  2,333
Transfer to assets held for sale -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  
Disposals -  -  -  -  (923) -  (11,658) -  (12,581)
At 31 March 2019 390 101,950 7,555 138 64,709 339 12,337 3,769 191,187

Accumulated depreciation 
At 1 April 2018 -  -  -  -  44,107 293 17,158 1,859 63,417
Provided during the period -  1,744 137 -  3,642 9 968 313 6,813
Revaluation -  (1,744) (137) -  -  -  -  -  (1,881)
Impairments -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  
Disposals -  -  -  -  (912) -  (11,658) -  (12,570)
Accumulated depreciation at 31 March 2019 -  -  -  -  46,837 302 6,468 2,172 55,779

Net book value at 31 March 2018
Owned 390 77,932 7,581 1,281 14,829 46 2,616 1,494 106,169
Finance leased -  -  -  -  211 -  -  -  211
On balance sheet PFI -  19,049 -  -  -  -  -  -  19,049
Donated -  1,066 -  -  2,917 -  24 308 4,315
Total at 31 March 2018 390 98,047 7,581 1,281 17,957 46 2,640 1,802 129,744

Net book value at 31 March 2019
Owned 390 81,591 7,555 138 15,162 37 4,011 1,309 110,193
Finance leased -  -  -  -  188 -  1,845 -  2,033
On-SoFP PFI -  19,269 -  -  -  -  -  -  19,269
Donated -  1,090 -  -  2,522 -  13 288 3,913
Total at 31 March 2019 390 101,950 7,555 138 17,872 37 5,869 1,597 135,408

Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust - Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2019

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

On 31 March 2019 Cushman and Wakefield reviewed the Trust’s land, buildings and dwellings on a Modern Equivalent Asset basis in accordance with the guidance included in the Royal Institution of Chartered 
Surveyors Valuation Standards. As a result, these assets were revalued to bring them to their current value at that date.



17. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Trust

17.4 Property, plant and equipment at the previous balance sheet date comprise the following elements:

 Freehold 
land

Freehold 
buildings 
excluding 
dwellings

Freehold 
dwellings 

Assets under 
construction 

and payments 
on account

Plant & 
machinery 

Transport 
equipment 

Information 
technology 

Furniture & 
fittings 

Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
Cost or valuation at 1 April 2017
At 1 April 2017 313 96,424 8,518 3,273 60,574 325 19,385 3,506 192,318
Additions - purchased -  -  -  5,377 66 -  -  -  5,443
A





18. Investments (continued)

Fair value measurement of investments 

19. Other financial assets

Non-curren t
2018/19 2017/18 2018/19 2017/18

£000 £000 £000 £000
Carrying value at 1 Apri l 2,123 2,000 3,721 4,060
Amortisation at the effective interest rate 81 123 81 123
Repayments in year -  -  (462) (462)
Carrying value at 31 March 2,204 2,123 3,340 3,721

Current

Carrying value at 1 Apri l -  -  462 462
Loans provided in year -  -  500 -  
Carrying value at 31 March -  -  962 462

Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust - Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2019

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Group Trust

b) Sterile Supplies Limited to re-develop a new production facility with a third party.

Non-current other financial assets represent loans made to:

a) Salisbury Trading Limited to purchase laundry equipment and laundry stocks from Salisbury NHS 
Foundation Trust on the commencement of the subsidiary business due in less than one year; and

Current other financial assets represent loans made to:

b) Salisbury Trading Limited to purchase laundry stocks following the successful tender to acquire new 
business.

a) Salisbury Trading Limited to purchase laundry equipment and laundry stocks from Salisbury NHS 
Foundation Trust on the commencement of the subsidiary business due after more than one year: and

Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value in the Statement of Financial Position are 
grouped into three levels of a fair value hierarchy. The three levels are defined based on the observability of 
significant inputs to the measurement, as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either 
directly or indirectly
Level 3: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability

The investments in the group financial statements are all level 1 investments and are measured at quoted 
prices at the date of the Statement of Financial Position.

Current asset investments are the cash balances held by HSBC Private Bank (UK) Limited on behalf of the 
charitable fund and represents dividend income, interest income and the proceeds of fixed asset investment 

1. £2.0m to purchase the laundry equipment is repayable over a 10 year term and attracts interest at 2% 
above the Bank of England base rate . Repayments commenced on 1 July 2015.

3. £1.3m to purchase the laundry stock is repayable over a 5 year term and attracts interest at 2% above the 
Bank of England base rate. Repayments commenced on 1 July 2015.

2. £0.5m to purchase laundry stocks is repayable in full on 1st November 2019 and attracts interest at 3% 
above the Bank of England base rate.

Details of the loans to Salisbury Trading Limited are as follows:
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19. Other financial assets (continued)

20. Inventories

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2019 2018 2019 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000

Drugs 1,346 1,163 1,346 1,163
Consumables 3,316 3,452 3,316 3,452
Laundry 1,711 1,147





22.

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2019 2018 2019 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at beginning of year 570 -  570 -  
Assets classified as held for sale in the year -  570 -  570 
Assets sold in the year (570) -  (570) -  

Balance at end of year -  570 -  570 

23. Cash and cash equivalent s

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2019 2018 2019 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at beginning of year 10,370 8,505 7,780 6,667 
Net change in year 2,146 1,865 (304) 1,113 
Balance at end of year 12,516 10,370 7,476 7,780 

Made up of:
Cash with Government Banking Service 7,374 7,689 7,374 7,689 
Cash at commercial banks and in hand 5,142 2,681 102 91 
Cash and cash equivalents as in balance shee t 12,516 10,370 7,476 7,780 
Bank overdrafts -  -  -  -  
Cash and cash equivalents as in cash flow statemen t 12,516 10,370 7,476 7,780 

24. Trade and other payable s

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2019 2018 2019 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000

10,282 10,176 8,919 9,564
Capital payable 2,662 2,908 2,662 2,908

384 303 384 432
PDC payable 12 -  12 -  
Receipts in advance 997 973 997 973
Social security and other taxes payable 3,111 2,844 3,111 2,844

-  127 -  -  
7,481 7,126 7,354 6,548

24,929 24,457 23,439 23,269

Of which payables from NHS and DHSC group bodies: 2,060 2,242 2,060 2,242

TrustGroup

In 2017/18 the Trust exercised its covenant rights and acquired a property for £180k with the intention of an
immediate resale. This property was sold in 2018-19.

Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust - Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2019

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Group Trust

Non-current assets for sale

Accrued interest
Other

Group Trust

Amounts falling due within one year:

Trade payables

Accruals and deferred income
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24. Trade and other payables (continued)

All Trade and other payables are current liabilities.

25. Borrowings

Group and Trust
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March

2019 2018 2019 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000

Obligations under finance leases 434 45 1,160 135
Amounts due under PFI (note 30) 468



26. Provisions for liabilities and charges

Group and Trust
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March

2019 2018 2019 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000

Pensions - early departure costs 28 27 20 50
Pensions - injury benefits 22 22 255 270
Legal claims 388 243 -  -  
Other 275 -  -  -  

713 292 275 320

Pensions -
Early 

departure 
costs

Pensions - 
Injury 

benefits

Legal 
claims

Other Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

At 1 April 2018 77 292 243 -  612
Change in the discount rate -  (1) -  -  (1)
Arising during the year -  8 318 275 601



28. Contingent liabilitie s

29. Related Party Transaction s

Income Expenditure Receivable s Payables
£000 £000 £000 £000

Year ending 31 March 201 9
Salisbury Trading Limited 400 977 424 95
Odstock Medical Limited 224 -  128 -  
Salisbury District Hospital Charitable Fund 246 42 116 -  
Sterile Supplies Limted 1,147 1,819 231 174
Wiltshire Health and Care LLP 613 364 34 61

Year ending 31 March 201 8
Salisbury Trading Limited 379 1,016 193 109
Odstock Medical Limited 212 -  169 -  
Salisbury District Hospital Charitable Fund 395 42 120 -  
Sterile Supplies Limted 1,225 1,697 1,181 -  
Wiltshire Health and Care LLP 152 -  -  -  

30. Private Finance Initiative Schemes (PFI)

30.1 PFI schemes deemed to be on-Statement of Financial Positio n

The PFI scheme provides modern clinical buildings for patient services covering a number of specialties including: Burns, Plastics, 
At the end of the contract term the hospital buildings revert back to the Trust for Nil consideration.
There were no changes to the terms and conditions of the PFI agreement during the year

Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust also has transactions with its subsidiary companies, joint ventures and charitable funds (for which it 
is the Corporate Trustee) These are listed below:

During the period none of the Board Members or members of the key management staff or parties related to them has undertaken
any material transactions with Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust. 

In addition, the Trust has had a number of material transactions with other Government Departments and other central and local
Government bodies.

Contract start date: 3 March 2004
Contract end date: 31 January 2036

Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust - Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 201 9

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

The Department of Health and Social Care is regarded as a related party. During the year ended 31 March 2019 the Foundation
Trust has had a significant number of material transactions with other entities for which the Department is regarded as the parent.
These entities include Clinicial Commissioning Groups, NHS England, Health Education England, NHS Resolution and other Trusts
and Foundation Trusts.





31. Financial instruments

31.1

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

GBP 30,815 14,726 70,509 59,539 12,516 10,370

31.2 Liquidity risk

31.3 Interest-rate risk



31. Financial instruments (continued)

31.6

Group

Held at 
amortised 

cost

Held at fair 
value 

through I&E

Held at fair 
value through 

OCI

Total 
carrying 

value
£000 £000 £000 £000

Trade and other receivables excluding non financial assets 19,325 - -  19,325
Other investments / financial assets 2,204 - -  2,204

8,319 - -  8,319
Consolidated NHS Charitable fund financial assets 4,465 7,059 -  11,524

34,313 7,059 -  41,372

Group
Loans and 

receivables

Assets at fair 
value 

through the 
I&E

Available-for-
sale

Total 
carrying 

value
£000 £000 £000 £000

Trade and other receivables excluding non financial assets 11,981 -  -  11,981
Other investments / financial assets 2,123 -  570 2,693

8,641 -  -  8,641
Consolidated NHS Charitable fund financial assets 61 8,508 -  8,569

22,806 8,508 570 31,884

Trust

Held at 
amortised 

cost

Held at fair 
value 

through I&E

Held at fair 
value through 

OCI

Total 
carrying 

value
£000 £000 £000 £000

Trade and other receivables excluding non financial assets 18,598 - -  18,598
Other investments / financial assets 4,410 - -  4,410

7,476 - -  7,476
30,484 - -  30,484

Trust
Loans and 

receivables

Assets at fair 
value 

through the 
I&E

Available-for-
sale

Total 
carrying 

value
£000 £000 £000 £000

Trade and other receivables excluding non financial assets 11,325 -  -  11,325
Other investments / financial assets 4,438 -  570 5,008

7,780 -  -  7,780
23,543 -  570 24,113
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Carrying values of financial assets

Total at 31 March 2019

Carrying values of financial assets as at 31 March 2019 
under IFRS 9

Cash and cash equivalents

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments is applied restrospectively from 1 April 2018 without restatement of comparatives. As such,
comparative disclosures have been prepared under IAS 39 and the measurement categories differ to those in the current year
analyses.

Carrying values of financial assets as at 31 March 2018 
under IAS 39

Cash and cash equivalents
Total at 31 March 2018

Carrying values of financial assets as at 31 March 2018 
under IAS 39

Cash and cash equivalents

Total at 31 March 2018

Carrying values of financial assets as at 31 March 2019 
under IFRS 9

Cash and cash equivalents
Total at 31 March 2019
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31. Financial Instruments (continued )

31.7

Group
Held at 

amortised cost

Held at fair 
value through 

I&E
Total carrying 

value
£000 £000 £000 

Loans from the Department of Health and Social Care 25,350 -  25,350
Obligations under finance leases 1,594 -  1,594
Obligations under PFI, LIFT and other service concession contracts 17,648 -  17,648
Trade and other payables excluding non financial liabilities 20,684 -  20,684
Provisions under contract 988 -  988
Consolidated NHS charitable fund financial liabilities 125 -  125
Total at 31 March 2019 66,389 -  66,389

Group
Held at 

amortised cost

Held at fair 
value through 

I&E
Total carrying 

value
£000 £000 £000 

Loans from the Department of Health and Social Care 16,154 -  16,154
Obligations under finance leases 180 -  180
Obligations under PFI, LIFT and other service concession contracts 18,136 -  18,136
Trade and other payables excluding non financial liabilities 24,457 -  24,457
Provisions under contract 612 -  612
Consolidated NHS charitable fund financial liabilities 19 -  19
Total at 31 March 2018 59,558 -  59,558

Trust
Held at 

amortised cost

Held at fair 
value through 

I&E
Total carrying 

value
£000 £000 £000 

Loans from the Department of Health and Social Care 25,350 -  25,350
Obligations under finance leases 1,594 -  1,594
Obligations under PFI, LIFT and other service concession contracts 17,648 -  17,648
Trade and other payables excluding non financial liabilities 19,319 19,319
Provisions under contract 988 -  988
Total at 31 March 2019 64,899 -  64,899

Unless otherwise stated above, carrying value is considered to be a reasonable approximation of fair value.

Carrying values of financial liabilities as at 31 March 2018 under 
IAS 39

Carrying values of financial liabilities as at 31 March 2019 under 
IFRS 9

Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust - Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2019

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Carrying values of finacial liabilities

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments is applied restrospectively from 1 April 2018 without restatement of comparatives. As such,
comparative disclosures have been prepared under IAS 39 and the measurement categories differ to those in the current year 
analyses.

Carrying values of financial liabilities as at 31 March 2019 under 
IFRS 9
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31. Financial Instruments (continued )

Trust

Held at 
amortised 

cost

Held at fair 
value through 

I&E
Total carrying 

value
£000 £000 £000 

Loans from the Department of Health and Social Care 16,154 -  16,154
Obligations under finance leases 180 -  180
Obligations under PFI, LIFT and other service concession contracts 18,136 -  18,136
Trade and other payables excluding non financial liabilities 23,269 -  23,269
Provisions under contract 612 -  612
Total at 31 March 2018 58,351 -  58,351

Maturity of financial liabilities

31 March 
2019 31 March 2018

31 March 
2019 31 March 2018

£000 £000 £000 £000 
In one year or less 23,217 25,932 21,014 24,725 
In more than one year but not more than two years 12,988 1,193 12,988 1,193 
In more than two years but not more than five years 14,202 15,795 14,202 15,795 
In more than five years 15,982 16,638 15,982 16,638 
Total 66,389 59,558 64,186 58,351 

32 Third Party Asset s

33. Investment in subsidiar y

33.1 Odstock Medical Limited

Trust



33. Investment in subsidiar y (continued )

33.2 Salisbury Trading Limited

Trust
Shares at cost £

At 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018 1

33.3 Replica 3DM Limited

34. Investment in Joint Ventures

34.1 Sterile Supplies Limited

Group and Trust 2019 2018
£000 £000 

Shares at cost 250 250
Brought forward share of profit/ (loss) -  - 
Share of profit/ (loss) in the period (147) - 
Carrying value of investment at 31 March 103 250

34.2 Wiltshire Health and Care

Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust has not invested any capital sum in this partnership.

Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust - Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2019

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS



35. Movements on Public Dividend Capital

Group and Trust 2019 2018
£000 £000

Public Dividend Capital at 1 April 55,957 54,046
New public dividend capital received 1,340 1,911
Public Dividend Capital at 31 March 57,297 55,957

36. Charitable fund balances

Group onl y 2019 2018
£000 £000

Restricted funds 8,304 6,060
Unrestricted funds 8,886 7,997
Endowment funds 9 9

17,199 14,066

37. Implementation of new financial reporting standards

37.1 Initial application of IFRS 9

Reassessment of allowances for credit losses under the expected loss model resulted in no change in the carrying value of
receivables.

The GAM expands the definition of a contract in the context of financial instruments to include legislation and regulations,
except where this gives rise to a tax. Implementation of this adaptation on 1 April 2018 has led to the classifiction of
receivables relating to Injury Cost Recovery as a financial asset measured at amortised cost. The carrying value of these
receivables at 1 April 2018 was £2,664k.



37. Implementation of new financial reporting standards (continued)

37.2 Initial application of IFRS 15

Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust - Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2019

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers as interpreted and adapted by the GAM has been applied by the Trust from
1 April 2018. The standard is applied retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initial application recognised as an
adjustment to the income and expenditure reserve on 1 April 2018.

IFRS 15 introduces a new model for the recognition of revenue from contracts with customers replacing the previous
standards IAS 11, IAS 18 and related Interpretations. The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity recognises revenue when
it satisfies performance obligations through the transfer of promised goods or services to customers at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled to in exchange for those goods or services.

As directed by the GAM, the Trust has applied the practical expedient offered in C7A of the standard removing the need to
retrospectively restate any contract modifications that occurred before the date of implementation (1 April 2018).

The Trust's contracts with Commissioners are standard NHS contracts valid for one year with an end date coterminous with
the Trust's financial year end. The standard has had no impact on the recognition of revenue by the Trust.
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